
 

 Page 1 of 4  

AGENDA 
FRIDAY, MARCH 21, 2014 

METCALF BUILDING, ROOM 111 
1520 EAST SIXTH AVENUE, HELENA, MONTANA 

********************************************************** 
NOTE: Individual agenda items are not assigned specific times. For public notice purposes, the meeting will begin no 
earlier than the time specified; however, the Board might not address the specific agenda items in the order they are 
scheduled. The Board will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in this 
meeting. Please contact the Board Secretary by telephone at (406) 444-6701 or by e-mail at jwittenberg@mt.gov no later 
than 4 days prior to the meeting to advise her of the nature of the accommodation you need.   
 

9:00 A.M. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

A. REVIEW AND APPROVE MINUTES 

1. The Board will vote on adopting the January 21, 2014, meeting minutes. 

II. BRIEFING ITEMS 

A. CONTESTED CASE UPDATE 

1. Enforcement cases assigned to the Hearing Examiner 

a. In the matter of violations of the Public Water Supply Laws by Trailer 
Terrace Mobile Park, LLC, Dennis Deschamps and Dennis Rasmussen at the 
Trailer Terrace, PWSID No. MT0000025, Great Falls, Cascade County, BER 
2012-11 PWS. A Fourth Order Granting Extension was issued on December 1, 
2013, giving the parties through April 1, 2014, to settle the matter or file a joint 
proposed prehearing schedule. 

b. In the matter of violations of the Sanitation in Subdivisions Act and Public 
Water Supply Laws by Roger Emery at the Sunrise Motel, Sidney, Richland 
County, BER 2013-06 SUB. On February 3, 2014, the parties filed a Proposed 
Schedule, proposing the contested case hearing for September 10, 2014. 

2. Contested Cases not assigned to a Hearing Examiner 

a. In the matter of the notice of appeal and request for hearing by Western Energy 
Company (WECO) regarding its MPDES Permit No. MT0023965 issued for 
WECO’s Rosebud Mine in Colstrip, BER 2012-12 WQ. On January 21, 2014, the 
parties filed Stipulation to Modification of Pre-trial Schedule, extending the 
telephonic prehearing conference to May 14, 2014, along with a Motion for Approval 



BER Agenda Page 2 of 4 March 21, 2014 

of Stipulation. On February 4, 2014, a Third Scheduling Order was issued 
implementing the stipulated schedule. The date of the hearing before the Board will 
be set at the prehearing conference. On March 3, 2014, parties DEQ and Western 
Energy Company filed a Joint Unopposed Motion for Partial Remand of Permit to 
Department of Environmental Quality and for Suspension of Proceedings. 

b. In the matter of the notice of appeal for hearing by Montana Environmental 
Information Center regarding DEQ’s approval of coal mine permit No. 
C1993017 issued to Signal Peak Energy, LLC, for Bull Mountain Mine No. 1 
in Roundup, MT, BER 2013-07 SM. On January 6, 2014, an Order Adopting 
Joint Stipulated Procedural Schedule for Administrative Review was issued. A 
Notice of Entry of Appearance was filed by Derf Johnson, as counsel for MEIC, 
on January 29, 2014.  

III. ACTION ITEMS 

A. OTHER ACTION ITEMS 

1. Amend the Missoula City-County air quality regulations to clarify the wildfire smoke 
emergency episode avoidance plan; add a temporary permitting process for portable 
industrial sources; clarify general outdoor burning procedures and the definition of 
bonfire; modify existing paving rules; provide general rule clarification and the 
addition of solid fuel burning devices for licensed mobile food vendors; and removal 
of the administrative review process for certain permitting actions. 

B. INITIATION OF RULEMAKING 

 DEQ will propose that the Board initiate rulemaking to: 

1. Amend Title 17, Chapter 36, Subchapter 9, On-Site Subsurface Wastewater 
Treatment Systems by updating definitions and Table 1 Setback Distances to provide 
consistency between the subdivision rules in Title 17, Chapter 36 and Circular DEQ-
4, 2013 edition; amend Title 17, Chapter 38, Subchapter 101(4)(d) to adopt by 
reference the proposed changes to Title 17, Chapter 36 for Subdivisions, specifically 
ARM 17.36.320 through 17.36.323 and 17.36.325, and to remove the adoption by 
reference in ARM 17.36.327; amend Title 17, Chapter 38, Subchapter 106(2)(a), (d), 
and (e) to provide fee structure consistency for review of public water supply and 
sewage systems that correspond to the proposed changes to Department Circular 
DEQ-1, the adopted changes to Department Circular DEQ-4, 2013 edition, and new 
proposed Department Circular DEQ-10; and to amend Title 17, Chapter 38, 
Subchapter 106(2) to add a provision (f) for the review of public water supply 
systems that correspond to proposed Department Circular DEQ-16. 

C. REPEAL, AMENDMENT, OR ADOPTION OF FINAL RULES 

1. In the matter of the amendment of the insitu coal operations rule as requested by the 
Office of Surface Mining (OSM). The change will only be removing the language 
stating that ARM 17.24.320 (Plans for Disposal of Excess Spoil) is not applicable to 



BER Agenda Page 3 of 4 March 21, 2014 

insitu coal operations. This was requested by OSM as it made the States rule less 
stringent then the Federal rule. 

2. In the matter of the adoption of new rule I pertaining to the administrative 
requirements for limited opencut operations. The Department is proposing New Rule 
I in order to implement the provisions for limited opencut operations in Section 5 of 
Senate Bill 332 (2013). 

3. In the matter of final adoption of proposed amendments to Title 17, Chapter 30, 
Subchapter 6, temporary water quality standards for the New World Mining District, 
as noticed in MAR 17-352. 

D. FINAL ACTION ON CONTESTED CASES 

1. In the matter of the request for hearing by Montana Environmental Information 
Center and Sierra Club regarding DEQ’s issuance of Montana Air Quality Permit 
No. OP0513-08 for the Colstrip Steam Electric Station, Colstrip, BER 2013-01 AQ. 
Oral arguments on pending motions occurred on October 22, 2013. Multiple prehearing 
motions were filed. The motions are listed with their respective disposition: 

 Motion for Partial Summary Judgment (Appellants-Montana Environmental 
Information Center and Sierra Club) (denied) 

 Motion in Limine to Preclude Appellant’s Expert Witnesses from, testifying about 
Certain issues (PPL) (denied in part and granted in part) 

 Motion to Dismiss Appellant’s Third Claim (PPL) or in the Alternative for 
Summary Judgment on Appellant’s Third Claim; Cross-Motion for Summary 
Judgment (PPL) (denied) 

 Motion and Brief for Summary Judgment (DEQ) (denied; written order to follow) 
 Motion and Brief in Limine (DEQ) (granted in part and denied in part) 
 Stipulation for Partial Dismissal (all parties)  
 Motion for Leave to Amend Affidavit together with Amended Affidavit 

(Appellants) (granted) 
 Motion for Leave to Supplement Briefs with Appellants’ Discovery Responses 

with supporting Brief (granted) 

On March 7, 2014, the parties submitted a Stipulation for Dismissal with Prejudice. A 
General Release and Settlement Agreement was provided. 

2. In the matter of the request for hearing by Montana Environmental Information 
Center and Sierra Club regarding DEQ’s issuance of Montana Air Quality 
Permit No. OP2953-07 for the JE Corette Steam Electric Station, Billings, BER 
2013-02 AQ. Oral arguments on pending motions occurred on October 22, 2013. The 
following prehearing motions were filed: 

 Motion for Partial Summary Judgment (Appellants- Montana Environmental 
Information Center and Sierra Club) (denied) 

 Motion for Summary Judgment (PPL) (denied) 



BER Agenda Page 4 of 4 March 21, 2014 

 Motion to Dismiss Appellant’s Third claim or in the Alternative for summary 
Judgment on Appellant’s Third Claim (PPL) (disposition suspended pending 
settlement) 

 Cross Motion for Summary Judgment (PPL) (denied) 
 Motion and Brief for Summary Judgment (DEQ) (denied) 
 Stipulation for Partial Dismissal (all parties)  
 Appellants’ Motion for Leave to Amend Affidavit with an Amended Affidavit 

(Appellants) (granted) 
 Motion to Dismiss Appellants’ Fourth Claim or in the Alternative, for Summary 

Judgment on Appellants’ Fourth Claim and Its Motion for Summary Judgment for 
Appellants’ Failure to Designate an Expert Witness. (denied) 

 Motion for Leave to Supplement Briefs with Appellants’ Discovery Responses 
(granted) 

On March 7, 2014, the parties submitted a Stipulation for Dismissal with Prejudice. A 
General Release and Settlement Agreement was provided. 

IV. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

Under this item, members of the public may comment on any public matter within the 
jurisdiction of the Board that is not otherwise on the agenda of the meeting. Individual 
contested case proceedings are not public matters on which the public may comment. 

V. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 
 

MINUTES 

January 21, 2014 
 
 

Call to Order  

The Board of Environmental Review’s regularly scheduled meeting was called to order by 
Madam Chair Shropshire at 9:00 a.m., on Friday, July 26, 2013, in Room 111 of the 
Metcalf Building, 1520 East Sixth Avenue, Helena, Montana. 

Attendance 

Board Members Present: Madam Chair Shropshire, Joan Miles, Chris Tweeten, Larry Mires, Joe 
Russell, Marietta Canty, Heidi Kaiser 

Board Attorney Present: Katherine Orr, Attorney General’s Office, Department of Justice 

Board Secretary Present: Joyce Wittenberg 

Court Reporter Present: Laurie Crutcher, Crutcher Court Reporting 

Department Personnel Present: Tracy Stone-Manning (Director); Tom Livers (Deputy Director); 
Chris Saeger, Steve Kilbreath – Director’s Office; John North, Norman Mullen, Carol 
Schmidt – Legal; John DeArment, Lisa Peterson – Permitting & Compliance Division; Jon 
Dilliard, Eugene Pizzini, Rachel Clark, Denver Fraser – Public Water Supply & 
Subdivisions Bureau; Bob Habeck, Paul Skubinna – Water Protection Bureau; David 
Klemp. Eric Merchant, Julie Merkel, Dave Aguirre, Annette Williams, Rebecca Harbage, 
Liz Ulrich, Eileen Steilman, Hoby Rash – Air Resources Management Bureau; John Arrigo 
– Enforcement Division; George Mathieus – Planning Division; Mark Bostrom. Mike 
Suplee, Eric Regensberger, Eric Urban – Water Quality Planning Bureau; Todd Teegarden, 
Joe Meek – Technical and Financial Assistance Bureau; Jeff Blend – Energy and Pollution 
Prevention Bureau; John Koerth – Remediation Division 

Interested Persons Present (Disclaimer: Names are spelled as best they can be read from the official 
sign-in sheet.): Anne Hedges – Montana Environmental Information Center; Mary Beth 
Marks, Robert Grosvenor, Shane M. – US Forest Service; Julie DalSoglio, Tina Laidlaw – 
Environmental Protection Agency; Mark Lambrecht – Treasure State Resource Industry 
Association; Barbera Hall, Kascie Herron – Clark Fork Coalition; Dave Galt – Montana 
Petroleum Association; Olivia Hunter (on phone) 

 



 

BER Minutes Page 2 of 5 January 21, 2014 

      At the request of Chairman Shropshire, Mr. Livers took roll call of Board members 
present. Mr. Tweeten was not present. 

I.A.1 Review and approve December 6, 2013, Board meeting minutes. 

     Mr. Mires MOVED to approve the December 6, 2013, meeting minutes as 
submitted. Ms. Kaiser SECONDED the motion. The motion CARRIED with a 6-0 vote. 

II.A.1.a In the matter of violations of the Public Water Supply Laws by Trailer Terrace Mobile 
Park, LLC, Dennis Deschamps and Dennis Rasmussen at the Trailer Terrace, PWSID 
No. MT0000025, Great Falls, Cascade County, BER 2012-11 PWS. (No discussion 
took place regarding this matter.) 

II.A.2.a In the matter of violations of the Sanitation in Subdivision Act and Public Water 
Supply Laws by Roger Emery at the Sunrise Motel, Sidney, Richland County, BER 
2013-06 SUB. (No discussion took place regarding this matter.) 

II.A.3.a In the matter of the notice of appeal and request for hearing by Western Energy 
Company (WECO) regarding its MPDES Permit No. MT0023965 issued for WECO’s 
Rosebud Mine in Colstrip, BER 2012-12 WQ. 

     Ms. Orr said the parties had requested an extension and that the prehearing 
conference would no longer take place on April 14. 

II.A.3.b In the matter of the notice of appeal for hearing by Montana Environmental 
Information Center regarding DEQ’s approval of coal mine permit NO. C1993017 
issued to Signal Peak Energy, LLC, for Bull Mountain Mine No. 1 in Roundup, MT, 
BER 2013-07 SM. 

     Ms. Orr said the parties asked for a one-month extension to complete discovery. 

II.A.3.c In the matter of the request for hearing by Montana Environmental Information Center 
and Sierra Club regarding DEQ’s issuance of Montana Air Quality Permit No. 
OP2953-07 for the Colstrip Steam Electric Station, Colstrip, BER 2013-01 AQ. (see 
II.A.3.d) 

II.A.3.d In the matter of the request for hearing by Montana Environmental Information Center 
and Sierra Club regarding DEQ’s issuance of Montana Air Quality Permit No. 
OP0513-08 for the JE Corette Steam Electric Station, Billings, BER 2013-02 AQ. 

     Ms. Orr said the parties had determined that they would like to try to settle these 
cases (BER 2013-01 AQ and BER 2013-02 AQ), and asked for an order on two of the 
motions for summary judgment that were filed by PPL and DEQ concerning the 
applicability of ARM 17.8.212(4), and that she would be issuing it soon. She said the 
parties will file a status report at the end of February. 

 [Mr. Tweeten arrived.] 



 

BER Minutes Page 3 of 5 January 21, 2014 

III.A.1 In the matter of the amendment of ARM 17.8.102 to incorporate by reference updated 
federal and state regulations and other non-substantive “housekeeping” revisions to 
the ARM. 

     Mr. Merchant said the department is asking the Board to initiate the rulemaking to 
adopt the current editions of Federal and State statutes and rules that are incorporated 
by reference in the Administrative Rules of Montana. He provided information 
regarding some of the changes to the statutes and rules.  

     Mr. Merchant and Mr. Klemp responded to questions from the Board. 

     Chairman Shropshire called for a motion to initiate the rulemaking and to appoint 
Ms. Orr as the presiding officer. Mr. Russell so MOVED. Ms. Canty SECONDED the 
motion. The motion CARRIED 7-0. 

III.A.4 (taken out of order) In the matter of the request to initiate rulemaking to extend the 
expiration date for the temporary water quality standards adopted for the New World 
Mining District at ARM 17.30.630. 

     Mr. Urban, on behalf of the department, requested that the Board initiate 
rulemaking for the New World Mining District Area to extend the existing temporary 
water quality standards five years, to expire on June 14, 2019. Mr. Urban provided 
some background information regarding the New World Mine Project.  

     Ms. Marks explained that the temporary standards allow the US Forest Service to 
clean up the historical mining wastes and move towards water quality improvements 
in support of the designated uses for the streams involved. She described the work 
completed to date.  

     Ms. Marks and Mr. Urban responded to questions from Board members. Mr. 
Livers described the concept of temporary standards. 

     Chairman Shropshire called for a motion to initiate the rulemaking to extend the 
temporary standards for five years. Mr. Tweeten so MOVED. Ms. Miles SECONDED 
the motion. Chairman Shropshire called for public comment. No one responded. The 
motion CARRIED 7-0. 

     Ms. Miles made a friendly amendment to appoint Ms. Orr as the presiding officer. 
The amendment CARRIED with a 7-0 vote. 

III.A.2 In the matter of the request to initiate rulemaking to adopt new nutrient standards for 
surface waters throughout Montana. 

     Mr. Mathieus provided some background information on the nutrient rule package. 
He explained that the rule package is divided into two components: 1) the numeric 
criteria, which the Board is considering; and 2) the implementation elements, which 



 

BER Minutes Page 4 of 5 January 21, 2014 

will be carried out by the department. He said if the Board initiates the rulemaking, 
DEQ will align the department rulemaking with the Board’s.  

     Dr. Suplee provided details of the rule package and responded to questions from 
the Board. 

     At the Board’s request, Mr. Mathieus further explained the DEQ portion of the 
rulemaking regarding variance and responded to questions from the Board. 

     Chairman Shropshire called for public comment. There was none. 

     Further discussion took place. Chairman Shropshire again asked if anyone wanted 
to comment. 

     Mr. Lambrecht reminded the Board that the numbers are based on science and 
several years of work. He cautioned the Board to think carefully before making 
significant changes to the numbers. 

     Chairman Shropshire called for a motion to initiate the rulemaking and to appoint 
Ms. Orr as the presiding officer. Ms. Miles so MOVED. Mr. Russell SECONDED the 
motion. Further discussion took place. The motion CARRIED 7-0. 

III.A.3 In the matter of the request to initiate rulemaking to amend Title 17, Chapter 38, 
Subchapter 1, Public Water and Sewer Plans, Cross Connections, and Drilling Water 
Wells, by updating Department Circulars DEQ-1, DEQ-3, DEQ-10, and DEQ-16. 

     Mr. Pizzini said DEQ is proposing a joint rulemaking of department and Board 
rules to update the adoption by reference of department circulars DEQ-1 and DEQ-3, 
and adopt new circulars DEQ-10 and DEQ-16. He explained that the adoption by 
reference gives the circulars the force of rule without having to publish all the 
information from the circulars into the rules themselves. He provided detail of the 
changes and responded to questions from the Board. 

     Chairman Shropshire called for a motion to initiate the rulemaking,  
appoint Ms. Orr as the permanent Hearing Examiner and hold a public hearing, to 
amend the public water supply rules -- to amend existing public water supply 
engineering rules to adopt updated Department Circular DEQ-1, 2014 edition -- to 
amend existing public water supply rules to adopt updated Department Circular DEQ-
1, 2014 edition, which sets forth the requirements for the design and preparation of 
plans and specifications for public water systems; to amend the existing public water 
supply engineering rules to adopt updated Department Circular DEQ-3, 2014 edition, 
which sets forth minimum design standards for small water systems; to adopt new 
Department Circular DEQ-10, 2014 edition, which sets forth the standards for the 
development of springs to serve public water supply systems; to adopt new 
Department Circular DEQ-16, 2014 edition, which sets forth the standards for cisterns 
to serve non-community public water supply systems; to amend the existing checklist 



 

BER Minutes Page 5 of 5 January 21, 2014 

to incorporate proposed changes in DEQ-1 and DEQ-3, and previous changes to 
Department Circular DEQ-4, 2013 edition; clarification of existing rules related to 
whether a professional engineer is required to submit plans and specifications; to 
amend for clarification existing rules related to submission of required documents by 
a professional engineer; amend existing rules for clarification related to submission of 
plans and specifications for systems that have never submitted plans and 
specifications for those systems that fail to complete construction within a three-year 
window; to amend subdivision rules that adopt DEQ-1 and DEQ-3 to reference the 
2014 editions; to reorganize for clarity, without changing the substance, portions of 
these rules mentioned before; and to incorporate the new federal standard for 
definition for “lead-free.” Mr. Mires so MOVED. Ms. Kaiser SECONDED the 
motion. The motion CARRIED 7-0.  

IV. General Public Comment 

     Chairman Shropshire asked if any member of the audience would like to speak to 
any matters before the Board. No one responded affirmative. 

V. Adjournment 

     Chairman Shropshire called for a motion to adjourn. Mr. Tweeten so MOVED. Ms. 
Miles SECONDED the motion. The motion CARRIED with a unanimous vote. 

     The meeting adjourned at 12:01 p.m. 

 

 

Board of Environmental Review January 21, 2014, minutes approved: 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 
      ROBIN SHROPSHIRE 
      CHAIRMAN 
      BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
      __________________ 
      DATE 



 
 

Executive Summary for Missoula City-County Air Pollution Control 

Program Rule Changes 

 

November 2012 Changes 

& 

October 2013 Changes 
 
The Missoula City-County Health Department (Department) is requesting that the 
Montana State Board of Environmental Review simultaneously approve two records of 
adoptions for the Missoula City-County Air Pollution Control Program. 
 
On November 15, 2012, the Missoula City-County Air Pollution Control Board (Air 
Board) approved changes to Chapters 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 14 of the Missoula City-County Air 
Pollution Control Program.  These changes were then approved by the Missoula City 
Council and the Missoula Board of County Commissioners on February 25, 2013.   See the 
November 2012 Record of Adoption for complete details. 
 
After these rules were passed at the local level, the Department received comments that 
one of the rule changes conflicted with state law.  It was also noticed that reference errors 
were present in the proposed rule changes.   
 
To correct the potential conflict with state law and the reference errors, the Department 
started the local rule making process again with the intent to fix the conflict with state law 
and the reference errors found in the previous set of changes.  The Department requested 
that the rule changes approved earlier by the Air Board, the City Council and the County 
Board of County Commissioners not be put on the Montana State Board of Environmental 
Review agenda until a second Missoula City-County Air Pollution Control Program rule 
making process could be completed at the local level. 
 
On October 17, 2013, the Air Board approved changes to Chapters 3, 6, 8, and 15 of the 
Missoula City-County Air Pollution Control Program.  These changes were then approved 
by the Missoula City Council and the Missoula Board of County Commissioners on 
December 9, 2013.  This second set of rule changes fix the conflict with state law, corrects 
several references errors in the rules, clarifies some of the rules, corrects reference errors in 
the November 8, 2012 Applicability of 75-2-301 Findings document, and corrects 
reference errors in the November 15, 2012 75-2-301 Written Findings document.  See the 
October 2013 Record of Adoption for complete details. 
 
By approving both records of adoption at the same time, potential conflicts with state law 
are avoided and several reference errors are fixed.  

MISSOULA 

COUNTY 
 

 

 

 MISSOULA CITY-COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH DIVISION 

301 WEST ALDER 
MISSOULA, MONTANA 59802-4123 

 
 

 (406) 258-4755 FAX # (406) 258-4781 



 

 

November 2012 Changes 
 
Chapter 4:  Missoula County Air Stagnation and Emergency Episode Avoidance Plan 

 Rule 4.112 states that air alerts and warnings with regulatory requirements must be 
called during Air Alerts, Warnings, Emergencies and Crisis when wildfire smoke is 
the cause of high air pollution levels.  The proposed rule change removes the 
requirement that air alerts be called when wildfire smoke causes high air pollution 
levels.  Health advisories are the appropriate response for wildfire smoke episodes, 
not regulatory actions.  This change would fix an oversight from previous rule 
revisions. 

  
Chapter 6:  Standards for Stationary (Industrial) Sources 

 Rule 6.101(8) adds a definition for a portable source. 
 Rule 6.101(10) corrects a reference error. 
 Rule 6.102 (3-4) allows portable industrial sources with a valid State of Montana 

Air Quality Permit to operate under a temporary Missoula City-County Air Quality 
Permit while the portable source pursues a permanent Missoula City-County Air 
Quality Permit.  This rule change allows portable sources with a valid state permit 
to operate in Missoula County in a timely fashion while ensuring that all 
environmental rules and local, state, and federal air pollution emission standards 
are met. 

 Rule 6.102(5) clarifies that the Air Board may require an air quality permit if a 
permit is needed to protect the National Ambient Air Quality Standards.  
Maintaining air pollutant levels below the National Ambient Air Quality Standards 
is one of the main purposes of the Air Pollution Control Program. 

 Rule 6.601(4) corrects a reference error. 
 Rules 6.103(6), 6.106(3), 6.107 (5-6) and 6.108(3) removes the Administrative 

Review Process from the Air Pollution Control Program permitting actions and 
clarifies who may request an Air Board Hearing.  The administrative review 
process has never been successfully used to resolve disputes or concerns with 
permitting actions.  Every request for an administrative review of an air permitting 
action has gone to an Air Board Hearing.  The administrative review process for air 
permits is a redundant step that uses up staff, public and permittees’ time with no 
benefit or resolution.  The ability for affected parties to request a Hearing before 
the Air Board for a department permitting action is maintained.  Who can request 
an Air Board Hearing is also clarified and expanded in this rule rewrite. 

 

Chapter 7:  Outdoor Burning 

 Rule 7.101(3) clarifies the definition of a bonfire for the county.  The previous 
definition was often interpreted in different and inconsistent ways.  This definition 
re-write will allow the department to give a more consistent interpretation of what 
constitutes a bonfire. 

 Rule 7.106(1) updates the rules to agree with how the outdoor burning permit 
program is now run.  The paper and phone methods have gone primarily to an 
internet and phone program and this change is needed to keep up with the new 
system. 



 Rule 7.107(3) clarifies major outdoor burning source requirements in the county.  
 Rule 7.110(7) removes an out of date phone number. 

 

Chapter 8:  Fugitive Particulate 

Chapter 8 was changed to allow alternatives to asphalt or concrete paving in situations 
where other surfaces with low fugitive emissions are technically feasible.  Over the years, 
the Missoula City-County Health Department has received several requests to allow paving 
options other than asphalt or concrete in appropriate situations; these changes address 
those requests.  The rule changes clarify that temporary roads at mining sites may not need 
to be paved and that material carry out at mining sites must be controlled to reduce fugitive 
emissions. 

 Rule 8.101(5) adds a definition for block pavers. 
 Rule 8.101(6) adds a definition for bound recycled glass. 
 Rule 8.101(21) adds a definition for reinforced grids.  This replaces the "geoblock" 

definition that was in Rule 8.101(9). 
 Rule 8.102(2) clarifies opacity rules for sources. 
 Rule 8.102(3) replaces the term "geoblocks" with reinforced grids and block 

pavers. 
 Rule 8.104 clarifies that roads at mining sites are temporary. 
 Rule 8.104(1) clarifies that temporary roads at mining sites are required to control 

material carry out. 
 Rule 8.104(2) clarifies that temporary roads at mining sites may not be required to 

pave. 
 Rule 8.202(4) clarifies that roads used for solely for utilities, agricultural or 

silvicultral purposes are exempt from the paving requirements of Subchapter 8.2. 
 Rule 8.202(5) clarifies that landfill roads may be considered temporary if they exist 

in the same location for less than three years. 
 Rule 8.203(1) acknowledges the addition of 8.203(4). 
 Rule 8.203(3)(a)(ii) clarifies that long term parking area exemptions do not apply 

to sales lots for automobiles or RVs. 
 Rule 8.203(b)(ii)  and Rule 8.203(d) replaces the term geoblock with reinforced 

grids since geoblock is a trade name and needs to be replaced. 
 Rule 8.203(4) adds a provision to allow self-draining solid surfaces (i.e. permeable 

paving) in parking areas as long as certain conditions are met. 
 Rule 8.204(1) allows a self-draining solid surface as an option for new private 

driveways. 
 Rule 8.204(4) adds a provision to allow self-draining solid surfaces in lieu of 

paving for new driveways in the air stagnation zone as long as certain conditions 
are met. 

  
Chapter 9:  Solid Fuel Burning Devices (Wood Stoves) 

 Rules 9.203(1)(b) and 9.204(1)(g) allows licensed mobile food service 
establishment to obtain a solid fuel burning device permit throughout the county.  
This change will allow the air rules to mesh better with the goals of the county 
licensed establishment food handling program.  To comply with the air rules, 



mobile food service establishments currently place their solid fuel cooking devices 
outside the mobile unit.  Best food handling practices require cooking to occur 
inside the mobile unit.  This rule change would allow the solid fuel 
burning/cooking devices to be inside the mobile unit and the rule does not allow the 
solid fuel burning device to be used in the winter months when we have air 
pollution problems from these types of devices. 

 Rule 9.401 corrects reference errors. 
 Rule 9.402 changes labeling requirements for businesses that sell solid fuel burning 

devices.  This change is needed to reflect previous changes in solid fuel burning 
device installation requirements throughout the county.  This requirement will 
make it clearer to customers where different devices may be installed in the county. 

  
Chapter 14:  Enforcement and Administrative Procedures 

 Rules 14.106(1-2, 6) and 14.107(1-2) removes the Administrative Review Process 
from the Air Pollution Control Program permitting actions and clarifies who may 
request an Air Board Hearing.  The administrative review process has never been 
successfully used to resolve disputes or concerns with permitting actions.  All 
requests for administrative reviews of air permitting actions have gone to Air Board 
Hearings.  The administrative review process for air permits is a redundant step that 
uses up staff, public, and permittees’ time with no benefit or resolution.  The ability 
for affected parties to request a Hearing before the Air Board for a department 
permitting action is maintained.  This rule rewrite also clarifies and expands who 
can request an Air Board Hearing. 

  
 

October 2013 Changes 
 
Chapter 3:  Failure To Attain Standards 

 Rule 3.102(1)(b) corrects reference errors in the Particulate Matter Contingency 
Measures. 

 
Chapter 6:  Standards for Stationary Sources 

 Rule 6.102 (4) clarifies that the Missoula City-County Health Department air 
quality permitting policies and conditions for the Missoula Air Stagnation Zone 
replace the Montana Air Quality Permit addendums specific to PM10 nonattainment 
areas.  Also corrects a reference omission in Rule 6.102(4)(d). 

 Rule 6.102(5)(a) adds language to remove any potential conflict with state law. 
 Rule 6.102(6) corrects a reference error. 

 
Chapter 8:  Fugitive Particulate 

 Rule 8.203(3)(a)(ii) clarifies that long term parking area exemptions do not apply 
to sales lots for vehicles. 

  
Chapter 15:  Penalties 

 Rule 15.104(3)(a and b) corrects reference errors. 





























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
AGENDA ITEM 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR RULEMAKING PROPOSAL 
 
AGENDA # III.B.1. 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY:  The Department requests that the Board join with the Department 
to initiate rulemaking to adopt revisions to the sewage system requirements, subdivision 
rules, and on-site subsurface wastewater rules.  A draft joint Board/Department rule notice 
is attached. 

 
LIST OF AFFECTED RULES:  ARM 17.36.320 through 323, 17.36.325, 17.36.912, 17.36.918, 
17.38.101 and 17.38.106. 
 
AFFECTED PARTIES SUMMARY:  The proposed rule amendments will affect designers and 
owners of systems that discharge sewage to subsurface treatment systems, and local 
boards of health and health departments that have regulations for such systems. 
 
SCOPE OF PROPOSED PROCEEDING:  The Department requests that the Board and 
Department jointly initiate rulemaking and jointly schedule a public hearing to take comment 
on the proposed revisions to the rules shown above. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The above referenced rules set out requirements for the review and 
approval of subsurface sewage treatment systems.  Title 17, Chapter 36, Subchapter 3 
Subdivisions, are Department rules for review of subdivisions.  Title 17, Chapter 36, Sub-
Chapter 9, On-Site Subsurface Wastewater Treatment Systems, are Board rules for the 
state minimum standards used by local health departments to permit onsite septic systems 
under Title 50, Chapter 2.  Title 17 Chapter 38, Sub-chapter 1 Public Water and Sewage 
System Requirements, are Board rules outlining the requirements for public subsurface 
sewage treatment systems.  
 
The Public Water and Sewage System Requirements adopt several Subdivision rules by 
reference.  The proposed Subdivision rule revisions outline allowable new and replacement 
system types, discuss site evaluation requirements and provide minimum setback 
requirements applicable in both proposed subdivisions and for public wastewater treatment 
systems not part of a subdivision.  The proposed revisions to the On-site Subsurface 
Wastewater Treatment Systems rules update definitions and setback requirements to 
provide consistency between the proposed subdivision rules and the state minimum 
standards. 
 
The proposed amendments to ARM 17.38.106(2)(a), (e), and (f) are necessary to make the 
fee structure correspond to proposed updates to Department Circular DEQ-1 (DEQ-1) and 
proposed new Department Circulars DEQ-10 and DEQ-16.  The proposed amendments will 
incorporate those changes into the engineering review fee schedules.  The department is 
required to collect fees commensurate with the department’s cost of conducting plan and 
specification review.  The proposed amendments do not modify the review fee for review of 
any type of application. 
 
The proposed amendments to ARM 17.38.106(2)(d) are necessary to make the fee 
structure correspond to updates made to Department Circular DEQ-4 (DEQ-4) in 2013.  
The 2013 edition of DEQ-4 was renumbered and re-titled.  The proposed amendments will 
incorporate those changes into the engineering review fee table.  The department is 



required to collect fees commensurate with the department’s cost of conducting plan and 
specification review.  The proposed amendments do not modify the review fee for any type 
of application.  The changes are strictly housekeeping in nature. 
 
HEARING INFORMATION:  The Department recommends that the Board appoint a hearing 
examiner and conduct a public hearing to take comment on the proposed amendments. 
 
BOARD OPTIONS: 
 
 The Board may: 
 

1. Initiate rulemaking and issue the attached Notice of Public Hearing on 
Proposed Amendment; 

2. Modify the Notice and initiate rulemaking; or 
3. Determine that amendment of the rules is not appropriate and deny the 

Department’s request to initiate rulemaking. 
 

DEQ RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Department recommends that the Board and Department jointly initiate rulemaking and 
appoint a hearing examiner. 
 
ENCLOSURES: 
 
 1.  Draft Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-1-

 BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 AND THE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
 OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 
 
In the matter of the amendment of ARM 
17.36.320, 17.36.321, 17.36.322, 
17.36.323, 17.36.325, 17.36.912, 
17.36.918, 17.38.101, and 17.38.106 
pertaining to sewage systems, 
definitions, horizontal setbacks, 
floodplains, plans for public sewage 
system, and fees 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

 
(SUBDIVISIONS/ON-SITE 

SUBSURFACE WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT) 

(PUBLIC WATER AND SEWAGE 
SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS) 

 
 TO:  All Concerned Persons 
 
 1.  On ______________, 2014, at __:__ __.m, the Board of Environmental 
Review and the Department of Environmental Quality will hold a public hearing [in/at 
address], Montana, to consider the proposed amendment of the above-stated rules. 
 
 2.  The board and department will make reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an 
alternative accessible format of this notice.  If you require an accommodation, 
contact Elois Johnson, Paralegal, no later than 5:00 p.m., ______________, 2014, 
to advise us of the nature of the accommodation that you need.  Please contact 
Elois Johnson at Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 200901, Helena, 
Montana 59620-0901; phone (406) 444-2630; fax (406) 444-4386; or e-mail 
ejohnson@mt.gov. 
 
 3.  The rules proposed to be amended provide as follows, stricken matter 
interlined, new matter underlined: 
 
 17.36.320  SEWAGE SYSTEMS:  DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION  (1)  All 
components of subsurface sewage treatment systems must be designed and 
installed in accordance with dDepartment Circular DEQ-4, Department Circular 
DEQ-2, or other applicable department circular and are subject to the following 
restrictions.: 
 (a)  systems designed in accordance with Department Circular DEQ-2 may 
not be used for individual, shared, or multiple-user systems, except as provided in 
Department Circular DEQ-4; and 
 (b)  experimental systems are allowed only pursuant to a waiver granted in 
accordance with ARM 17.36.601. 
 (2)  As indicated on Table 2 of this rule, public systems and multi- Multiple-
user systems with design flows greater than or equal to 2,500 gallons per day must 
be designed by a registered professional engineer and are subject to the 
requirements in [New Rule II, proposed in MAR Notice No. 17-### published in this 
register]. 
 (2) (3)  A For subsurface systems, a minimum separation of at least four feet 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-2-

of natural soil must exist between the infiltrative surface or the liner of a lined system 
and a limiting layer, except that at least six feet of natural soil must exist on a steep 
slope (of greater than 15% percent to 25%). 
 (3) (4)  The proposed subsurface sewage treatment area must include an 
area for 100% percent replacement of the system, except that the replacement area 
for elevated sand mounds may be allowed as provided in Department Circular DEQ-
4.  If a size reduction is approved for a system, the replacement area must have 
area sufficient for the system without the size reduction.  Unless a waiver is 
approved by the department pursuant to ARM 17.36.601, the replacement area must 
meet the same requirements as the primary area.  If the replacement area is not 
immediately adjacent to the primary area, or if the department indicates to the 
applicant that it has reason to believe there is evidence that site conditions for the 
replacement area may vary from those for the primary area, the applicant shall 
submit adequate evidence of the suitability of the replacement area. 
 
 TABLE 2 
  ALLOWABLE SYSTEMS, REQUIREMENTS 

 YES - Systems that are allowed 
NO - Systems that are not allowed 

 
DEQ-4 System 
 

Public: 
> 5000 

gpd 
 

(1) (7) 

Public or 
Multiple-

user: 
 2500 gpd 

and 
 5000 gpd 

(2) (7)

 
Public or 
Multiple-

user: 
< 2500 gpd 

(3) 

Individual/ 
Shared: 

 
(6) 

 
Standard Absorption 
Trench 

NO NO 
 

YES YES 

 
At-Grade Systems 
 

NO NO 
 

YES YES 

 
Gravelless  
 

YES YES 
 

YES YES 

 
Deep Trench 
 

 
NO 

 
NO 

 
NO 

 
YES 

 
Elevated Sand Mound 
 

YES YES 
 

YES YES 

 
Evapotranspiration (ET) 
Systems  
 

NO NO 
 

NO NO (5) 

 
ET-Absorption 
 

NO YES 
 

YES YES 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-3-

 
 YES - Systems that are allowed 

NO - Systems that are not allowed 
 
DEQ-4 System 
 

Public: 
> 5000 

gpd 
 

(1) 

Public or 
Multiple-

user: 
 2500 gpd 

and 
 5000 gpd 

(2) 

 
Public or 
Multiple-

user: 
< 2500 gpd 

(3) 

Individual/ 
Shared: 

 
(6) 

 
Chemical Nutrient 
Reduction;  
Aerobic Sewage 
Treatment Systems  
 

NO (5) NO (5) NO (5) 
 

NO (4)(5) 

 
Pressure Distribution 
 

YES  YES  YES 
 

YES 

 
Sand-lined Absorption 
Trenches  

NO YES YES 
 

YES 

 
Experimental Systems  NO (5) NO (5) NO (5) 

 
NO (5) 

 
 (1) Public systems with design flow greater than 5000 gallons per day (gpd). 
 (2) Public or multiple-user systems with design flow greater than or equal to 
2500 gpd and less than or equal to 5000 gpd. 
 (3) Public or multiple-user systems with design flow less than 2500 gpd. 
 (4) Means of securing continuous operation and maintenance of these 
systems must be approved by the reviewing authority prior to DEQ approval. 
 (5) May be allowed by waiver, pursuant to ARM 17.36.601. 
 (6) Individual or shared commercial sewage systems that have a design flow 
greater than 700 gpd shall be considered multi-user. 
 (7)  Must be designed by a professional engineer. 
 
 AUTH:  76-4-104, MCA 
 IMP:  76-4-104, MCA 

 
Intermittent Sand Filters  
 

YES YES 
 

YES YES 

 
Recirculating Sand Filters YES YES 

 
YES YES 

 
Recirculating Trickling 
Filters 

YES YES 
 

YES YES 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-4-

 REASON:  The department is proposing to eliminate Table 2 and replace it 
with a narrative format.  Table 2 shows sewage systems that are allowed by DEQ-4, 
but the systems currently listed in Table 2 do not include all of the systems 
addressed in the most recent edition (2013) of the Circular.  Table 2 also adds some 
restrictions and requirements for Department Circular DEQ-4 (DEQ-4) systems.  The 
department is proposing to eliminate some of these additional restrictions.  With the 
proposed elimination of some of the restrictions in Table 2, and because Table 2 
otherwise simply lists systems allowed by DEQ-4, it has limited use.  The restrictions 
and requirements that are retained are proposed to be set out in a narrative format 
that is easier to understand. 
 The department is proposing to eliminate the restrictions imposed by Table 2 
on standard absorption trenches, at-grade systems, deep trenches, 
evapotranspiration (ET) systems, ET-absorption systems, and chemical nutrient 
reduction and aerobic sewage treatment systems.  The restrictions are not 
necessary because, if the systems are designed in accordance with DEQ-4, they will 
provide adequate treatment of wastewater.  The proposed amendments would retain 
the restriction in Table 2 that experimental systems may be allowed only through a 
waiver.  The amendments also would retain the requirement that multiple-user 
systems with a design flow greater than or equal to 2,500 gallons per day be 
designed by a professional engineer.  The amendments require that multiple-user 
systems designed by a professional engineer comply with the requirements of New 
Rule II, proposed in MAR Notice No. 17-___ and published in this register. 
 ARM 17.36.320(1) requires that components of sewage systems be designed 
in accordance with DEQ-4.  The proposed amendments would delete the term 
"subsurface."  This is necessary because DEQ-4 is not limited to subsurface 
systems.  DEQ-4 also addresses systems such as waste segregation and 
incinerator toilets.  The proposed amendments also add a reference to Department 
Circular DEQ-2 (DEQ-2).  This is necessary because DEQ-2 requirements may be 
applicable to some public sewage systems. 
 Proposed ARM 17.36.320(1)(a) prohibits use of DEQ-2 for individual, shared, 
and multiple-user systems, except as provided in DEQ-4.  A similar restriction 
currently exists in ARM 17.36.321(2), and it is proposed to be restated here for 
clarity.  Because DEQ-4 requires some components to be designed in accordance 
with DEQ-2, the amendments will allow use of DEQ-2 when required by DEQ-4. 
 Proposed ARM 17.36.320(1)(b) sets out the requirement, currently in Table 2, 
that experimental systems are allowed only pursuant to a waiver. 
 The proposed amendments create a new ARM 17.36.320(2) to state the 
existing requirement that a professional engineer design multiple-user systems with 
a design capacity equal to or greater than 2,500 gallons per day.  The amendments 
delete the reference in this sentence to public systems.  The provisions requiring 
design by professional engineers of public sewage systems will now be consolidated 
in the rules for public water and sewer systems.  See proposed amendments to 
ARM 17.38.101.  The amendments delete the reference to a "registered" 
professional engineer.  The term "registered" is not necessary because "professional 
engineer" is proposed to be defined, in proposed amendments to the department's 
Sanitation in Subdivisions Act rules, as a person licensed pursuant to Title 37, 
chapter 67, MCA.  This definition already appears in the public water supply rules 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-5-

(see ARM 17.38.101(3)(m).  The proposed amendments provide a cross-reference 
to the requirements in New Rule II, proposed in MAR Notice No. 17-### and 
published in this register, for engineer-designed multiple-user systems.  New Rule II, 
proposed in MAR Notice No. 17-___ and published in this register, requires the 
applicant to commit to retaining a professional engineer to certify that construction 
was completed in accordance with the approved design and requires that an 
engineer certify, before the system is operated, that it was completed in accordance 
with approved plans.  It also requires an engineer to submit to the department, within 
90 days after completion, certified "as-built" plans, and requires that plans and 
specifications be re-submitted if construction is not completed within three years 
after approval. 
 The proposed amendments to renumbered ARM 17.36.320(3) clarify that this 
section is applicable only to subsurface systems.  It is not necessary to apply the 
requirements of this section to systems not addressed in DEQ-4.  The proposed 
amendment eliminates the 25 percent maximum.  Under proposed ARM 
17.36.322(2), slopes of up to 35 percent are allowed with a variance and there is no 
need to state a maximum in this rule.  This amendment follows proposed 
amendments to ARM 17.36.322 that would allow pressure-dosed systems on slopes 
up to 35 percent through a waiver process.  This amendment is necessary to clarify 
that, if a waiver is granted under ARM 17.36.322 to allow a pressure-dosed system 
on a slope greater than 25 percent, the six-foot soil requirement applies. 
 The proposed amendments to renumbered ARM 17.36.320(4) clarify that the 
reviewing authority has discretion whether to require replacement areas for elevated 
sand mounds, pursuant to DEQ-4.  See DEQ-4 Section 6.7.2.5.  The amendments 
also provide that a replacement area must provide space for a full-size system, even 
when the original approved system qualified for a size reduction.  This is necessary 
to ensure adequate space in the event that the replacement system does not qualify 
for a size reduction.  The amendments also make minor changes for clarification. 
 
 17.36.321  SEWAGE SYSTEMS:  ALLOWABLE NEW AND REPLACEMENT 
SYSTEMS  (1)  The allowable new sewage treatment systems, together with certain 
other requirements for such systems, are indicated in Table 2 of ARM 17.36.320.  All 
systems must be designed and installed in accordance with dDepartment Circular 
DEQ-4, Department Circular DEQ-2, or other applicable department circular.  The 
use of sewage systems for replacement systems shall be in accordance with 
department Circular DEQ-4.  Requirements applicable to review of existing sewage 
treatment systems are set out in ARM 17.36.327. 
 (2)  Systems designed in accordance with dDepartment Circular DEQ-2, may 
not be used for individual, shared, or multiple-user systems, except as provided in 
Department Circular DEQ-4. 
 (3)  The following sewage systems may not be used for new systems: 
 (a) through (f) remain the same. 
 (g)  holding tanks, except that.: 
 (i)  Tthe department may grant a waiver, pursuant to ARM 17.36.601, to allow 
holding tanks for recreational vehicle dump stations in facilities owned and operated 
by a local, state, or federal unit of government, or in facilities licensed by the 
Department of Public Health and Human Services and inspected by the local health 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-6-

department.  Holding tanks must be designed and maintained in accordance with the 
requirements in dDepartment Circular DEQ-4 and all other requirements imposed by 
the department and local health department.; and 
 (ii)  the department may grant a waiver, pursuant to ARM 17.36.601 and with 
concurrence by the local health department, to allow holding tanks to replace a failed 
system when no other alternative that meets these rules is reasonably available. 
 (4) through (5) will remain the same. 
 
 AUTH:  76-4-104, MCA 
 IMP:  76-4-104, MCA 
 
 REASON:  The proposed amendments to ARM 17.36.321(1) delete the 
reference to Table 2 in ARM 17.36.320.  This is necessary because the proposed 
amendments to ARM 17.36.320 would delete Table 2.  The proposed amendments 
would also add a reference to DEQ-2.  This is necessary because DEQ-2 
requirements may be applicable to some sewage systems.  The amendments would 
delete the sentence identifying requirements for replacement systems.  The 
sentence is unnecessary because the preceding sentence identifies requirements 
for "all systems," which include replacement systems. 
 ARM 17.36.321(2) prohibits use of DEQ-2 for individual, shared, and multiple 
user systems.  The proposed amendment clarifies that DEQ-2 requirements may 
apply in some cases, as specified in DEQ-4. 
 ARM 17.36.321(3)(g)(i) allows the department to allow, through waiver, 
holding tanks for recreational vehicle dump stations in facilities owned and operated 
by a local, state, or federal unit of government, or in facilities licensed by the 
Department of Public Health and Human Services (DPHHS).  The proposed 
amendment would also allow waivers for holding tanks in other types of government-
owned or licensed facilities.  It is not necessary to limit waivers under this section to 
recreational vehicle dump stations. 
 The proposed amendments add a new ARM 17.36.321(3)(g)(ii), which allows 
the department to allow, through waiver, holding tanks in any situation where a 
system has failed and no other alternative that meets the rules is reasonably 
available.  The new provision is necessary to allow for continued use of a parcel 
when the existing sewage system has failed and cannot be replaced with any 
system other than a holding tank. 
 
 17.36.322  SEWAGE SYSTEMS:  SITING  (1)  Subsurface Gravity-fed 
subsurface sewage treatment systems may not be used if natural slopes are greater 
than 15% percent;.  however, the department may, by waiver granted pursuant to 
ARM 17.36.601, allow a A pressure-dosed sewage treatment system with a design 
flow of 5,000 gallons per day or less may be used on slopes between greater than 
15% percent and up to 25% percent, if a registered professional engineer or a 
person qualified to evaluate and identify soil in accordance with ASTM standard 
D5921-96el (Standard Practice for Subsurface Site Characterization of Test Pits for 
On-Site Septic Systems) Department Circular DEQ-4 submits adequate evidence 
that there will be no visible outflow of liquid downslope from the subsurface sewage 
treatment system. 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-7-

 (2)  The department may grant a waiver, pursuant to ARM 17.36.601 and 
after consultation with the local health department, to allow pressure-dosed 
subsurface sewage treatment systems on slopes greater than 25 percent and up to 
35 percent if a professional engineer or a person qualified to evaluate and identify 
soil in accordance with Department Circular DEQ-4 submits adequate evidence that 
there will be no visible outflow of liquid downslope from the subsurface sewage 
treatment system. 
 (2) (3)  Subsurface sewage treatment systems may not be installed on 
unstable landforms, as defined in ARM 17.36.320 17.36.101. 
 (3) and (4) remain the same, but are renumbered (4) and (5). 
 (5) (6)  For lots one two acres in size or less, the applicant shall physically 
identify the drainfield location by staking or other acceptable means of identification.  
For lots greater than one two acres in size, the department may require the applicant 
to physically identify the drainfield location. 
 (6) remains the same, but is renumbered (7). 
 
 AUTH:  76-4-104, MCA 
 IMP:  76-4-104, MCA 
 
 REASON:  The proposed amendments delete the reference to a "registered" 
professional engineer.  See Reason for ARM 17.36.320.  The proposed 
amendments to ARM 17.36.322(1) retain the 15 percent slope limitation for gravity-
fed subsurface systems, and allow, without a waiver, pressure-dosed systems on 
slopes greater than 15 percent and up to 25 percent if a qualified person performs a 
soil evaluation.  Gravity-fed systems are not suitable on slopes greater than 15 
percent due to the tendency of these systems to load effluent over small areas, 
which creates the potential for soil sloughing or effluent outfall.  However, pressure-
dosed systems can be used on those slopes, and the waiver process is not needed 
to ensure that the pressure-dosed systems are properly designed.  For slopes 
greater than 15 percent and up to 25 percent, the amendments require that soil 
evaluations be conducted in accordance with DEQ-4 instead of ASTM standard 
D5921-96el.  The reference to the ASTM standard is not necessary because the 
procedures in the standard are substantially addressed in DEQ-4. 
 The proposed new ARM 17.36.322(2) allows, through a department waiver, 
use of pressure-dosed systems on slopes greater than 25 percent and up to 35 
percent, if a qualified person performs a soil evaluation.  The department has found 
that in some situations pressure-dosed systems can be installed on these slopes 
without adverse consequences.  The use of the waiver process will allow for 
consideration of the special circumstances in each case. 
 The proposed amendment to renumbered ARM 17.36.322(3) is necessary to 
correct an erroneous cross reference. 
 The proposed amendment to renumbered ARM 17.36.322(6) expands, from 
one to two acres, the size of lots in which approved drainfield locations must be 
staked or otherwise identified.  This amendment is necessary to conform to revisions 
to DEQ-4, 2013 edition (Section 2.1.4.)  Physical identification of approved drainfield 
sites is necessary to prevent other construction improvements from interfering with 
the drainfield site.  Identification may be by physical staking, or by a method such as 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-8-

electronic identification using GPS coordinates.  The increase in lot size from one to 
two acres is necessary because the potential for interference is not limited to one-
acre lots.  The amendments also give the department discretion to require drainfield 
site identification on lots larger than two acres.  This is necessary to allow the 
reviewing authority to prevent interference with an approved drainfield site where a 
significant amount of ground disturbance is proposed. 
 
 17.36.323  SEWAGE SYSTEMS:  HORIZONTAL SETBACKS; WAIVERS 
 (1)  Minimum horizontal setback distances, (in feet), shown in Table 3 2 of 
this rule must be maintained, except as provided in the table footnotes or as allowed 
through a deviation granted under ARM Title 17, chapter 38, subchapter 1.  The 
setbacks in this rule are not applicable to gray water irrigation systems that meet the 
setbacks and other requirements of ARM 17.36.319. 
 (2)  A waiver of the setback distance for a cistern may be granted by the 
department, pursuant to ARM 17.36.601, if the applicant demonstrates that the 
elevation of the cistern is higher than the elevation of the septic tank, other 
components, or drainfield/sand mound. 
 (3)  A waiver of the setback distance between drainfields/sand mounds and 
surface waters, springs, and floodplains may be granted by the department, 
pursuant to ARM 17.36.601, only if: 
 (a)  the applicant demonstrates that ground water flow at the drainfield site 
cannot flow into the surface water or spring; or 
 (b)  the surface water or spring seasonally high water level is a minimum of 
100 feet horizontal distance from the drainfield and the bottom of the drainfield will 
be at least two feet above floodplain elevation. 
 (4)  The department may require more than 100 feet of separation from the 
floodplain or from surface water or springs if it determines that site conditions or 
water quality nondegradation requirements indicate a need for the greater distance. 
 
 TABLE 3 2 
 SETBACK DISTANCES 
 (in feet) 
 

 
From To 

Drinking Water 
Supply Wells 

To 
Sealed Components 

(1) and Other 
Components (2) 

 
To 

Drainfields/Sand 
Mounds Soil 
Absorption 
Systems 

Public or 
multiple-user 
drinking water 
wells/springs 

- 100 (3) 100

Individual and 
shared drinking 
water wells 

- 50(3) 100

Other wells (4) - 50 (3) 100 (3)



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-9-

 
 (1)  Sealed components include sewer lines, sewer mains, septic tanks, 
grease traps, dosing tanks, and pumping chambers holding tanks, sealed pit privies, 
and the components addressed in Department Circular DEQ-4, Chapters 4 and 5.  
Sealed components must meet the requirements of ARM 17.36.322(4). 
 (2)  Other components include intermittent and recirculating sand filters, 
package plants, and evapotranspiration systems the components addressed in 
Department Circular DEQ-4, chapter 7. 
 (3)  A waiver of this requirement may be granted by the department pursuant 
to ARM 17.36.601. 
 (4)  Other wells include, but are not limited to, irrigation and stock watering, 
but do not include observation wells as addressed in Department Circular DEQ-4. 
 (3) remains the same, but is renumbered (5). 
 (4) (6)  Down-gradient of the sealed component, other component, or 
drainfield/sand mound soil absorption system. 
 (5)  A waiver of this requirement may be granted by the department pursuant 
to ARM 17.36.601. 
 (7)  Easements may be used to satisfy the setback to property boundaries. 
 (8)  Unless a waiver is granted by the department pursuant to ARM 
17.36.601, sewer mains that cross water mains must be laid with a minimum vertical 
separation distance of 18 inches between the mains. 

Suction lines - 50 100
Cisterns - 25 50
Roadcuts, 
escarpment 

- 10 (3) (5) 25

Slopes > 25% 35 
percent  (4) (6) 

- 10 (3) (5) 25

Property 
boundaries 

10 (7) 10 (7) 10 (7)

Subsurface 
drains 

- 10 10

Water Lines 
mains 

- 10 (8) 10

Drainfields/Sand 
Mounds soil 
absoprtion 
systems 

100 10 -

Foundation walls - 10 10
Surface water, 
(9) springs 

100 (5) (3) (10) 
(11) 

50 (3) (10) 100 (3) (10) (12)

Floodplains  10 (10) - Sealed components 
- no setbacks (1) 

Other components - 
100 (2) (3) (10) 

100 (10) (13)

Mixing zones 100 (3) - -

Storm water 
ponds and 
ditches 

25 (14) 10 25



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-10-

 (9)  For purposes of this rule, "surface water" does not include intermittent 
storm water. 
 (10)  The department may require more separation from the floodplain or from 
surface water or springs if it determines that site conditions or water quality 
requirements indicate a need for the greater distance. 
 (11)  Pursuant to ARM 17.36.331, the reviewing authority may require greater 
than a 100-foot horizontal separation between a well and surface water if there is a 
potential that the well may be influenced by contaminants in the surface water. 
 (12)  A waiver may be granted by the department, pursuant to ARM 
17.36.601, if the applicant demonstrates that ground water flow at the drainfield site 
cannot flow into the surface water or spring.  The setback between drainfields or soil 
absorption systems to irrigation ditches does not apply if the ditch is lined with a full 
culvert. 
 (13)  A waiver may be granted by the department, pursuant to ARM 
17.36.601, if the applicant demonstrates that the surface water or spring seasonally 
high water level is at least a 100-foot horizontal distance from the drainfield and the 
bottom of the drainfield will be at least two feet above the maximum 100-year flood 
elevation. 
 (14)  The setback is 100 feet for public wells, unless a deviation is granted 
under ARM Title 17, chapter 38, subchapter 1. 
 
 AUTH:  76-4-104, MCA 
 IMP:  76-4-104, MCA 
 
 REASON:  The proposed amendment to the title of the rule deletes "Sewage 
Systems."  This is necessary because the setbacks in Table 2 apply to other 
features besides sewage systems.  The proposed amendment to the title also 
deletes the term "horizontal."  This is necessary because proposed new footnote (8) 
to Table 2 establishes vertical setbacks between water and sewer mains. 
 The proposed amendments move ARM 17.36.323(2) through (4) into the 
Table 2 footnotes.  The current format is confusing in that some allowable waivers 
are shown on Table 2 and others are not.  These amendments will ensure that all 
allowable waivers are indicated on the table and described in the table footnotes.  
The proposed amendment to ARM 17.36.323(1) indicates that all waivers to the 
setbacks in Table 2 are shown in the footnotes.  The proposed amendments to ARM 
17.36.323(1) also allow a waiver to a setback in the table if the department has 
allowed a lesser distance through the deviation process under the public water and 
sewer (PWS) rules in ARM Title 17, chapter 38, subchapter 1 and related 
department circulars.  This "reciprocal" waiver process is necessary to prevent a 
conflict between these rules and a deviation for a proposed subdivision facility that is 
granted under the PWS rules. 
 At the top of Table 2, column 4, the proposed amendments replace the term 
"sand mounds" with "soil absorption systems".  This is necessary to clarify that the 
setback table applies to other systems besides sand mounds.  The proposed 
amendments also replace "water supply wells" with "drinking water wells."  This is 
necessary to clarify that the referenced setbacks apply only to water wells proposed 
to be used for human drinking water supply. 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-11-

 Existing footnotes (1) and (2) of Table 2 identify sealed and "other" 
components that are subject to the table.  The proposed amendments to footnotes 
(1) and (2) delete the lists of components in the footnotes and replace them with a 
reference to DEQ-4, Chapters 4, 5, and 7.  The components currently listed in the 
footnotes are addressed in DEQ-4, but DEQ-4 includes other components as well.  It 
is not practical to list all of the components in the footnote.  To provide a more 
complete identification of components that are subject to Table 2, it is necessary to 
identify them by reference. 
 In the first row of Table 2, the proposed amendments allow a waiver of the 
setback between public or multiple-user wells or springs and sealed or other 
components of sewage systems.  A 100-foot setback is not always necessary when 
the sewage system component is designed to prevent contamination of the water 
supply.  The current table allows waivers under footnote (5).  The proposed 
amendments renumber the waiver footnote as footnote (3) throughout Table 2. 
 The proposed amendments insert a new second row in Table 2 for individual 
and shared water supply wells.  The current table addresses these wells under 
"other wells."  The new category is proposed in order to distinguish between drinking 
water wells and non-drinking water wells.  Under the proposed amendment, 
setbacks to non-drinking water wells will be addressed under "other wells."  The 
setbacks are the same for drinking water wells and other wells, except that a waiver 
is allowed for the setback between other wells and drainfields/soil absorption 
systems.  Because other wells no longer include wells for drinking water, it is 
appropriate to adjust this setback in some cases through waiver.  The proposed 
amendments would also allow a waiver of the setback between individual, shared, 
and other wells and sealed and "other" components of sewage systems.  A 100-foot 
setback is not always necessary when the sewage system component is designed to 
prevent contamination of the water supply or other well.  Proposed footnote (4) 
provides that the setbacks for other wells do not apply to monitoring wells.  This is 
necessary to allow the use of monitoring wells in subdivisions.  Compared with wells 
for irrigation or stockwater, monitoring wells do not present a significant risk of 
surfacing sewage, and in some cases monitoring wells must be installed close to a 
sewage source to determine potential impacts to water quality.  
 The proposed amendments to the setbacks for roadcuts, escarpments, and 
slopes greater than 25 percent renumber the existing footnote from (3) to (5).  The 
amendments increase, from 25 percent to 35 percent, the slope to which the slope 
setback applies.  This is necessary to the consistent with the proposed amendments 
to ARM 17.36.322, which allow, through waiver, pressure-dosed sewage treatment 
systems on slopes between 25 percent and 35 percent.  The amendment also 
renumbers, from (4) to (6), the footnote that clarifies that the slope setback applies 
down-gradient of the sealed component, other component, or drainfield/soil 
absorption system. 
 The proposed amendments add a new footnote (7) to the 10-foot setback for 
property boundaries to provide that easements may be obtained to satisfy the 
setback.  The purpose of the setback is to allow owners adequate access to their 
facilities for purposes of repairs and maintenance.  In some cases, usually involving 
a change to a previously approved facility, the 10-foot buffer from the property 
boundary may be unavailable.  In those cases, an easement from the adjoining 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-12-

landowner will provide adequate assurance that access is available. 
 The proposed amendments modify the current 10-foot setback for "water 
lines" so that it would apply only to "water mains."  Ten feet of horizontal separation 
is not needed between sewage system components and water service lines.  This 
amendment will also provide consistency with a comparable setback in the Uniform 
Plumbing Code.  The proposed amendments add a new footnote (8) to the setback 
that requires an 18-inch vertical separation between water and sewer mains, unless 
the department grants a waiver.  The 18-inch vertical separation requirement is 
currently found in Department Circulars DEQ-1 (DEQ-1) and DEQ-2 (DEQ-2), and is 
included in footnote (8) to ensure that subdivision applicants are aware of it.  The 
waiver process will provide a method for considering special circumstances that may 
affect the need for the 18-inch vertical setback.   
 The proposed amendments add several new footnotes to the setbacks for 
surface water and springs.  Footnote (9) provides that this setback is not applicable 
to intermittent storm water.  Footnote (9) is added because the amendments add, in 
the last row of Table 2, a new setback for storm water ponds and ditches.  The 
proposed amendments add Footnote (3), which will allow waivers from the setbacks 
from surface water and springs.  Special circumstances can affect whether these 
setbacks are necessary.  The waiver process will provide a method for considering 
these circumstances on a case-by-case basis.  Footnote (10) allows the department 
to require more separation from surface water or springs, based on site conditions or 
water quality needs.  This footnote incorporates the provisions that are currently in 
(4) of the rule.  Footnote (11) provides a cross-reference to ARM 17.36.331, which 
allows the reviewing authority to require a greater than 100-foot separation between 
a well and surface water if there is a potential that the well may be influenced by 
contaminants.  Footnote (11) is necessary to indicate that the setback shown in 
Table 2 can be modified in those circumstances.  Footnote (12) provides that the 
department may waive the drainfield setback if the applicant demonstrates that 
ground water flow at the drainfield site cannot flow into the surface water or springs.  
This footnote incorporates the provisions that are currently in (3)(b).  Footnote (12) 
also states that the setback between drainfields or soil absorption systems and 
irrigation ditches does not apply if the ditch is lined with a full culvert.  This provision 
reflects an existing department interpretation of former (3)(a).  Including it in footnote 
(12) will provide guidance to applicants about this setback requirement. 
 The proposed amendments add several footnotes to the floodplain setbacks.  
The proposed amendments add Footnote (3), which allows waivers, to the setback 
between the floodplain and wells.  This is necessary to allow, through the waiver 
process, consideration of special construction or siting circumstances that minimize 
the potential for commingling between flood waters and a water supply.  Footnote 
(10) provides that the reviewing authority may require more separation from the 
floodplain, based on site conditions or water quality needs.  This footnote 
incorporates the provisions that are currently in (4) of the rule.  Proposed footnote 
(13) provides that the department may waive the setback between floodplains and 
drainfields/soil absorption systems if the applicant demonstrates that the surface 
water or spring seasonally high water level is at least 100 feet horizontal distance 
from the drainfield and that the bottom of the drainfield will be at least two feet above 
the maximum flood elevation.  This footnote incorporates the provisions that are 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-13-

currently in (3)(b) of the rule.  The proposed amendments also add footnote (3), 
which allows waivers, to the setback between the flood plain and "other" sewage 
components.  Under the proposed amendments to footnote (2), "other" sewage 
components are the advanced treatment systems addressed in chapter 7 of DEQ-4.  
Some of these systems are sealed units that would not create a contamination risk 
during a flood event.  The waiver process will provide a method for considering 
these circumstances on a case-by-case basis.   
 The proposed amendments insert a new row in Table 2 establishing a 100-
foot setback between mixing zones and water supply wells.  This is necessary to 
ensure that drinking water wells are isolated from potential sources of contamination.  
A waiver provision is provided to allow for department consideration of unique 
circumstances. 
 The proposed amendments insert a new row in Table 3 establishing setbacks 
from storm water ponds and ditches.  The proposed setbacks are less than those for 
non-storm surface water and springs.  Because storm water facilities have 
intermittent flows, they are less likely to impact wells or be impacted by sewage 
disposal facilities.  Consequently, it is not necessary to apply the larger setbacks that 
apply to more permanent surface water sources.  Proposed footnote (14) clarifies 
that the setback remains 100 feet between storm water facilities and public wells.  
This is necessary to be consistent with the requirements for public wells set out in 
DEQ-1 and Department Circular DEQ-3 (DEQ-3).  Section 3.2.3.1 of DEQ-1 and 
DEQ-3 requires that public wells be located at least 100 feet from sewer lines, septic 
tanks, holding tanks, and any structure used to convey or retain industrial, storm, or 
sanitary waste. 
 
 17.36.325  SEWAGE SYSTEMS:  SITE EVALUATION  (1) remains the same. 
 (2)  If the applicant or the department has reason to believe that ground water 
will be within seven feet of the surface at any time of the year within the boundaries 
of the treatment system, the applicant shall install ground water level observation 
pipes to a depth of at least eight feet to determine the seasonally high ground water 
level.  The applicant shall monitor the observation pipes through the seasonally high 
ground water period ground water monitoring must be conducted in accordance with 
Department Circular DEQ-4. 
 (3)  The applicant shall provide descriptions of the soils within 25 feet of the 
boundaries of each proposed drainfield.  Soil descriptions must address the 
characteristics used in the U.S. Department of Agriculture's National Soil Survey 
Handbook (USDA, NRCS, September 1999), and the Soil Survey Manual (USDA, 
October 1993).  These characteristics include, but are not limited to, soil texture, soil 
structure, soil consistence, and indicators of redoximorphic features.  Soil 
descriptions for the proposed subdivision must meet the following requirements: 
 (a)  soil descriptions must be done in accordance with Department Circular 
DEQ-4.  The characteristics that must be addressed include, but are not limited to, 
soil texture, soil structure, soil consistence, and indicators of redoximorphic features; 
 (a) (b)  Ssoil descriptions for the proposed subdivision must be based on data 
obtained from test holes.  Test holes must be at least eight feet in depth dug in 
accordance with Department Circular DEQ-4;.  The number of test holes must be as 
provided in (i), unless a waiver is granted by the department pursuant to ARM 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-14-

17.36.601.  Before a waiver is granted, the applicant shall complete test holes for 25 
percent of the proposed drainfield locations in the proposed subdivision, shall 
demonstrate that the soils are consistent throughout the area requested for a waiver, 
and shall obtain the approval of the local reviewing authority.  The department may 
require additional test holes than are required in (c) if the department determines 
that there is significant variability of the soils in the proposed drainfield areas.  Each 
test hole must be keyed by a number on a copy of the lot layout or map with the 
information provided in the application. 
 (b) (c)  At least one test hole must be dug for each individual drainfield and for 
each shared (two-user) drainfield, unless a waiver is approved by the department 
pursuant to ARM 17.36.601. Before a waiver is requested and granted, the applicant 
must complete test holes for 25% of the proposed drainfield locations in the 
subdivision, demonstrate that the soils are consistent throughout the area requested 
for a waiver, and must obtain the approval of the local reviewing authority for 
reduction in number of test holes.  At least three test holes must be dug for each 
multiple-user and public drainfield, unless a waiver is approved by the department 
pursuant to ARM 17.36.601.  At least one test hole must be dug in for each zone of 
a pressure-dosed drainfield, unless a waiver is approved by the department 
pursuant to ARM 17.36.601.  The department shall require additional test holes if it 
determines that there is significant variability of the soils in the proposed drainfield 
area;. 
 (c)  Test holes must be located within 25 feet of the boundaries of the 
proposed drainfield.  The locations must be established by a person qualified to 
evaluate and identify soil in accordance with ASTM standard D5921-96el (Standard 
Practice for Subsurface Site Characterization of Test Pits for On-Site Septic 
Systems); 
 (d)  If the applicant or the department has reason to believe that a limiting 
layer is within seven feet of the ground surface at the site of a proposed subsurface 
sewage treatment systems, the department may require additional test pits holes 
and soil descriptions sufficient to describe the suitability of the soil must be provided; 
and. 
 (e)  Each test hole must be keyed by a number on a copy of the lot layout or 
map with the information provided in the report. 
 (4)  Sewage systems that are subject to the design requirements of 
Department Circular DEQ-2 must meet the siting requirements of that circular. 
 
 AUTH:  76-4-104, MCA 
 IMP:  76-4-104, MCA 
 
 REASON:  The proposed amendment to ARM 17.36.325(2) deletes the 
existing description of required ground water monitoring procedures and replaces it 
with a reference to DEQ-4.  DEQ-4 contains a more complete statement of 
procedures and the amendment is necessary to inform subdivision applicants of all 
applicable ground water monitoring procedures. 
 The proposed amendments to ARM 17.36.325(3) reorganize the section to 
consolidate the waiver provisions into a single subsection.  This is necessary to 
eliminate repetition and to clearly indicate which requirements are subject to waiver.  
The proposed amendments add a reference to DEQ-4 to renumbered ARM 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-15-

17.36.325(3)(b).  DEQ-4 contains a more complete statement of test hole 
requirements, and the amendment is necessary to inform subdivision applicants of 
all applicable procedures.  The amendment in new (c) is necessary to allow test 
holes to be dug near, but not in, the zone if disruption by the test hole could interfere 
with the function of the system.  The amendment is also necessary to be consistent 
with procedures in DEQ-4, 2013 edition.  The proposed amendments delete existing 
ARM 17.36.325(3)(c) because it unnecessarily duplicates other provisions in the 
rule.  The amendment to (d) is proposed because additional holes and descriptions 
may not always be necessary in this situation.  Subsection (e) is eliminated because 
this requirement will now be found in the new language in subsection (b). 
 The proposed amendments add a reference to the siting requirements of 
DEQ-2.  This is necessary to identify applicable siting requirements for sewage 
systems that are subject to DEQ-2. 
 
 17.36.912  DEFINITIONS  For purposes of this subchapter, the following 
definitions apply: 
 (1) through (4) remain the same. 
 (5)  "Commercial unit" means the area under one roof that is occupied by a 
business or other nonresidential use.  A building housing two businesses is 
considered two commercial units. 
 (5) and (6) remain the same, but are renumbered (6) and (7). 
 (7)  "Dwelling" or "residence" means any structure, building or portion thereof, 
which is intended or designed for human occupancy and supplied with water by a 
piped water system. 
 (8) and (9) remain the same. 
 (10)  "Floodplain" means the area adjoining the watercourse or drainway that 
would be covered by the floodwater of a flood of 100-year frequency except for 
sheet flood areas that receive less than one foot of water per occurrence and are 
considered zone b areas by the federal Emergency Management Agency a flood 
that is expected to recur on the average of once every 100 years or by a flood that 
has a one percent chance of occurring in any given year.  The floodplain consists of 
the floodway and the flood fringe, as defined in ARM Title 36, chapter 15. 
 (11) through (13) remain the same. 
 (14)  "Impervious layer" means any layer of material in the soil profile that has 
a percolation rate slower than 120 240 minutes per inch. 
 (15)  "Individual wastewater system" means a wastewater system that serves 
one living unit or commercial structure unit.  The total number of people served may 
not exceed 24 term does not include a public sewage system as defined in 75-6-
102, MCA. 
 (16) remains the same. 
 (17)  "Living unit" means the area under one roof occupied by a family that 
can be used for one residential unit and which has facilities for sleeping, cooking, 
and sanitation.  For example, a duplex is considered two living units. 
 (18)  "Multiple user wastewater system" means a non-public wastewater 
system that serves or is intended to serve three through 14 living units or three 
through 14 commercial structures more than two living units or commercial units or a 
combination, but which is not a public sewage system as defined in 75-6-102, MCA.  



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-16-

The total number of people served may not exceed 24.  In estimating the population 
that will be served by a proposed residential system, the reviewing authority shall 
multiply the number of living units times the county average of persons per living unit 
based on the most recent census data by 2.5. 
 (19) remains the same. 
 (20)  "Package plants" means wastewater treatment systems that are sealed 
within a watertight container and contain components for the secondary and tertiary 
treatment of wastewater. 
 (21) (20)  "Percolation test" means a standardized test used to assess the 
infiltration rate of soils, performed in accordance with Appendix A in Department 
Circular DEQ-4. 
 (22) (21)  "Piped water system supply" means a plumbing system that 
conveys water into a structure from any source including, but not limited to, wells, 
cisterns, springs, or surface water. 
 (23) through (28) remain the same, but are renumbered (22) through (27). 
 (29) (28)  "Septic tank" means a storage wastewater settling tank in which 
settled sludge is in immediate contact with the wastewater flowing through the tank 
while the organic solids are decomposed by anaerobic action. 
 (30) (29)  "Shared wastewater system" means a wastewater system that 
serves or is intended to serve two living units or commercial structures units or a 
combination of both.  The total people served may not exceed 24 term does not 
include a public sewage system as defined in 75-6-102, MCA.  In estimating the 
population served, the reviewing authority shall multiply the number of living units 
times the county average of persons per living unit based on the most recent census 
data. 
 (31) and (32) remain the same, but are renumbered (30) and (31). 
 (33) (32)  "Soil profile" means a description of the soil strata to a depth of 
eight feet using the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) soil 
classification system method in Appendix B, Department Circular DEQ-4. 
 (34) and (35) remain the same, but are renumbered (33) and (34). 
 (36) (35)  "Wastewater" means water-carried waste that is discharged from a 
dwelling, building, or other facility, including wastes including, but not limited to: 
 (a) through (d) remain the same. 
 (37) (36)  "Wastewater treatment system" or "wastewater disposal system" 
means a system that receives wastewater for purposes of treatment, storage, or 
disposal.  The term includes, but is not limited to, pit privies and experimental 
systems all disposal methods described in Department Circular DEQ-4. 
 
 AUTH:  75-5-201, MCA 
 IMP:  75-5-305, MCA 
 
 REASON:  The term "commercial unit" is defined in new ARM 17.36.912(5).  
The term is used in the definitions of individual, shared, and multiple-user 
wastewater systems.  The proposed definition of "commercial unit" is the same as 
the definition in these rules and DEQ-4, 2013 edition.  The definition is necessary to 
clarify how shared and multiple-user systems are defined. 
 The proposed amendments delete the definition of "dwelling."  The term 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-17-

"dwelling" is currently used only in the definition of "wastewater" to refer to 
wastewater discharged from a dwelling.  The proposed amendments would modify 
the definition of "wastewater" to delete the reference to discharge from a dwelling.  
Consequently, the definition of "dwelling" is no longer necessary. 
 The proposed amendments to the definition of "floodplain" in ARM 
17.36.912(10) eliminate the exception for areas that receive less than one foot of 
water per occurrence that are considered "zone b" areas by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA).  The defined term "floodplain" is used in rules that 
restrict the construction of drainfields in and near floodplains.  The exception for 
FEMA "zone b" in the current definition could allow construction of drainfields in 
areas that are inundated by floodwaters less than one foot deep during the 100-year 
flood.  Because any inundation of drainfields by flood waters during a 100-year flood 
could interfere with proper drainfield operation, it is necessary to eliminate the 
exception, in the definition of "floodplain," for FEMA "zone b" areas. 
 The proposed amendments to the definition of "impervious layer" in ARM 
17.36.912(14) change, from 120 to 240 minutes per inch, the percolation rate at 
which material is considered impervious.  The amendment conforms this definition to 
that in DEQ-4, 2013 edition, and is necessary because adequate wastewater 
treatment can be achieved in soils with slower percolation rates. 
 The proposed amendments to the definition of "individual wastewater system" 
in ARM 17.36.912(15) replace the term "commercial structure" with "commercial 
unit".  This is necessary in order to use the term "commercial unit" as defined in 
these rules and in DEQ-4, 2013 edition.  The amendments also delete the limitation 
to 24 people served, and replace it with a reference to the statutory definition of 
public water supply and public sewage systems.  This amendment is necessary 
because the 24-person limit does not accurately identify the threshold between a 
non-public and a public system contained in 75-6-102, MCA. 
 The proposed amendment to the definition of "living unit" in ARM 
17.36.912(17) deletes the reference to "family" and replaces it with "residential."  
This is necessary because not all residential uses involve use by a family.  The 
amendments also identify the basic features of a living unit, which are that it has 
facilities for sleeping, cooking, and sanitation.  The amendments conform this 
definition to that in the Sanitation in Subdivisions Act rules and DEQ-4 and are 
necessary to identify which structures constitute living units for the purposes of these 
rules. 
 The proposed amendments to the definition of "multiple user wastewater 
system" in ARM 17.36.912(18) replace the term "commercial structure" with 
"commercial unit."  This is necessary in order to use the term "commercial unit" as 
defined in these rules and in DEQ-4, 2013 edition.  The proposed amendments 
provide that multiple-user systems can consist of two or more living units, 
commercial units, or a combination of residential and commercial units.  This is 
necessary to provide guidance about the meaning of the rules.  The amendments 
also delete the limitation to 24 people served and replace it with a reference to the 
statutory definition of public water supply and public sewage systems.  This 
amendment is necessary because the 24-person limit does not accurately identify 
the threshold between a non-public and a public system.  The amendments also 
modify the formula for determining when proposed residential water and sewer 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-18-

systems will be subject to the requirements for public systems.  The current rule 
multiplies the number of proposed living units times the county average of persons 
per living unit, based on the most recent census data.  The amendments standardize 
the persons per living unit to 2.5.  This is necessary to ensure that the requirements 
for public systems are applied consistently across the state to developments of a 
certain size. 
 The proposed amendments delete the definition of "package plants" in ARM 
17.36.912(20).  The term is used in a list of sewage system components in footnote 
(2) of the setback table in ARM 17.36.918.  Because the proposed amendments 
delete the term from the footnote to the setback table, this definition is no longer 
necessary. 
 The proposed amendment to the definition of "percolation test" in ARM 
17.36.912(21) references the procedures for performing percolation tests set out in 
DEQ-4 Appendix A.  This amendment conforms to the definition in DEQ-4 and is 
necessary to clarify that tests must be done in accordance with Appendix A to meet 
the requirements of these rules. 
 The proposed amendments modify the definition of "piped water system" in 
ARM 17.36.912(22).  This is necessary because the term "piped water system" is 
used only in the definition of "dwelling," which the proposed amendments would 
replace with the term "living unit."  The modification replaces the term with "piped 
water supply," which is used in ARM 17.36.916(6). 
 The proposed amendments to the definition of "septic tank" in ARM 
17.36.912(29) make minor changes for clarification and are necessary to conform to 
the definition in DEQ-4, 2013 edition. 
 The proposed amendments to the definition of "shared wastewater system" in 
ARM 17.36.912(30) replace the term "commercial structure" with "commercial unit."  
This is necessary in order to use the term "commercial unit" defined in these rules 
and in DEQ-4, 2013 edition.  The amendments also clarify that shared user systems 
can consist of two or more living units, commercial units, or a combination of 
residential and commercial units.  This is necessary to provide guidance about the 
meaning of the rules.  The amendments also delete the limitation to 24 people 
served, and replace it with a reference to the statutory definition of public water 
supply and public sewage systems.  This amendment is necessary because the 24-
person limit does not accurately identify the threshold between a non-public and a 
public system.  The amendment conforms to the definition of "shared wastewater 
system" in DEQ-4, 2013 edition.  The amendments also delete the reference to the 
formula for determining when a shared system is subject to the design standards for 
public systems.  The reference is not necessary because shared systems can be 
public based on the definitions in 75-6-102, MCA, but will not reach the public 
threshold based on the county average of persons per living unit. 
 The proposed amendment to the definition of "soil profile" in ARM 
17.36.912(33) adds a reference to the soil classification method set out in Appendix 
B of DEQ-4.  The amendment is necessary to provide guidance to permit applicants 
about where the required procedures can be found. 
 The proposed amendments to the definition of "wastewater" in ARM 
17.36.912(36) delete the reference to wastewater that is discharged from a dwelling, 
building, or other facility.  The amendment is necessary to include systems that do 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-19-

not discharge from a building, such as waste segregation systems and incinerator 
toilets.  The proposed amendments also conform this definition to that in DEQ-4, 
2013 edition. 
 The proposed amendments to the definition of "wastewater treatment system" 
in ARM 17.36.912(37) replace the reference to pit privies and experimental systems 
with a reference to all disposal methods described in DEQ-4.  Pit privies and 
experimental systems are addressed in DEQ-4, together with a number of other 
types of systems.  The amendment is necessary to provide a more complete 
reference to the types of wastewater treatment systems. 
 
 17.36.918  HORIZONTAL SETBACKS, FLOODPLAINS  (1)  Minimum 
horizontal setback distances (in feet) are as follows: 
 
 TABLE 1 
 SETBACK DISTANCES 
 (in feet) 
 

From To 
Sealed components (1) and 

other components (2) 

To 
Absorption systems (3) 

Public or multiple-user 
drinking water 
wells/springs 

100 100 

Individual and shared 
drinking water supply 

50 100 

Other wells (4) 50 100 

Suction lines 50 100 

Cisterns 25 50 
Roadcuts, escarpments 10 (4) (5) 25 

Slopes > 25% 35 percent 
(5) (6) 

10 (4) (5) 25 

Property boundaries (7) 10 10 

Subsurface drains 10 10 

Water lines mains (8) 10 10 

Drainfields/sand mounds 
(3) 

10 - 

Foundation walls 10 10 

Surface water, Springs 50 100 

Floodplains --Sealed components - no 
setbacks (1) 

Other components - 100 (2) 

100 

 
(1)  Sealed components include sewer lines, sewer mains, septic tanks, grease 
traps, dosing tanks, pumping chambers, holding tanks, and sealed pit privies, and 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-20-

the components addressed in Department Circular DEQ-4, Chapters 4 and 5.  
Holding tanks and sealed pit privies must be located at least 10 ten feet outside the 
floodplain or any openings must be at least two feet above the floodplain elevation. 
(2)  Other components include intermittent and recirculating sand filters, package 
plants, and evapotranspiration systems the components addressed in Department 
Circular DEQ-4, Chapter 7. 
(3)  Absorption systems include absorption trenches, absorption beds, sand 
mounds, and other drainfield type systems that are not lined or sealed.  This term 
also includes seepage pits and unsealed pit privies the systems addressed in 
Department Circular DEQ-4, Chapter 6. 
(4)  Other wells include, but are not limited to, irrigation and stock watering, but do 
not include observation wells as addressed in Department Circular DEQ-4. 
Footnotes (4) and (5) remain the same, but are renumbered (5) and (6). 
(7)  Easements may be used to satisfy the setback to property boundaries. 
(8)  Sewer mains that cross water mains must be laid with a minimum vertical 
separation distance of 18 inches between the mains. 
 
 (2)  The reviewing authority may require greater horizontal separation 
distances than those specified in Table 1, if it determines that site conditions or 
water quality nondegradation requirements indicate a need for the greater distance. 
 (3) through (5) remain the same. 
 
 AUTH:  75-5-201, MCA 
 IMP:  75-5-305, MCA 
 
 REASON:  Existing footnotes (1), (2), and (3) of Table 1 identify sealed 
components, "other" components, and absorption systems that are subject to Table 
1.  The proposed amendments to footnotes (1), (2), and (3) delete the lists of 
components and systems in the footnotes and replace them with a reference to 
DEQ-4, Chapters 4, 5, 6, and 7.  The components and systems currently listed in the 
footnotes are addressed in DEQ-4, but DEQ-4 includes other components and 
systems as well.  It is not practical to list all of the components and systems in the 
footnote.  To provide a more complete identification of components and systems that 
are subject to Table 1, it is necessary identify them by reference. 
 The proposed amendments clarify that the setback row referring to "Public or 
multiple user wells/springs" applies to "drinking water" supplies.  This is necessary to 
clarify that the referenced setbacks apply only to water wells proposed to be used for 
a human drinking water supply. 
 Proposed new footnote (4) clarifies that the setbacks for other wells do not 
apply to monitoring wells.  Compared with wells for irrigation or stockwater, 
monitoring wells do not present a significant risk of surfacing sewage, and in some 
cases monitoring wells must be installed close to a sewage source to determine 
potential impacts to water quality. 
 A new setback row is proposed for "Individual and shared water supply wells."  
Because new footnote (4) designates "other wells" as non-drinking water wells, the 
new row is necessary to provide a setback for individual and shared drinking water 
wells. 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-21-

 The proposed amendments to the setbacks for roadcuts, escarpments, and 
slopes renumber the existing footnotes from (4) to (5).  The amendments increase, 
from 25 percent to 35 percent, the slope to which the slope setback applies.  This is 
necessary to be consistent with the proposed amendments to ARM 17.36.322, 
which allow, through a Department of Environmental Quality waiver, pressure-dosed 
sewage treatment systems on slopes between 25 percent and 35 percent.  The 
amendments also renumber, from (5) to (6), the existing footnote that states that the 
slope setback applies down-gradient of the sealed component, other component, or 
drainfield/soil absorption system. 
 The proposed amendments add a new footnote (7) to the ten-foot setback for 
property boundaries, to clarify that easements may be obtained to satisfy the 
setback.  The purpose of the setback is to allow owners adequate access to their 
facilities for purposes of repairs and maintenance.  In some cases the ten-foot buffer 
from the property boundary may be unavailable.  In those cases, an easement from 
the adjoining landowner will provide adequate assurance that access is available. 
 The proposed amendments modify the current ten-foot setback for "water 
lines" so that it would apply only to "water mains."  Ten feet of horizontal separation 
is not needed between sewage system components and water service lines.  This 
amendment will also provide consistency with a comparable setback in the 
Sanitation in Subdivisions Act rules and the Uniform Plumbing Code. 
 The proposed amendments add a new footnote (8) to the setback, for water 
mains, that requires an 18-inch vertical separation between water and sewer mains.  
The 18-inch vertical separation requirement is currently found in DEQ-1 and the 
requirement is included in footnote (8) to ensure that permit applicants are aware of 
it. 
 
 17.38.101  PLANS FOR PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY OR PUBLIC SEWAGE 
SYSTEM  (1) through (3)(n)(ii) remain the same. 
 (4)  A person may not commence or continue the construction, alteration, 
extension, or operation of a public water supply system or public sewage system 
until the applicant has submitted a design report along with the necessary plans and 
specifications for the system to the department or a delegated division of local 
government for its review and has received written approval.  Three sets of plans 
and specifications are needed for final approval.  Approval by the department or a 
delegated division of local government is contingent upon construction and operation 
of the public water supply or public sewage system consistent with the approved 
design report, plans, and specifications.  Failure to construct or operate the system 
according to the approved plans and specifications or the department's conditions of 
approval is an alteration for purposes of this rule.  Design reports, plans, and 
specifications must meet the following criteria: 
 (a) through (c) remain the same. 
 (d)  the board adopts and incorporates by reference ARM 17.36.320 through 
17.36.325 and 17.36.327.  The design report, plans, and specifications for public 
subsurface sewage treatment systems must be prepared in accordance with ARM 
17.36.320 through 17.36.325 and 17.36.327, and in accordance with the format and 
criteria set forth in department Circular DEQ-4, "Montana Standards for Subsurface 
Wastewater Treatment Systems;."  For public subsurface sewage treatment systems 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-22-

with a design flow greater than or equal to 2,500 gallons per day, the design report, 
plans, and specifications must be prepared by a professional engineer. 
 (e) through (20) remain the same. 
 
 AUTH:  75-6-103, MCA 
 IMP:  75-6-103, 75-6-112, 75-6-121, MCA 
 
 REASON:  ARM 17.38.101 sets out requirements for plans for public water 
supply and public sewage systems.  The rule is promulgated under the board's 
authority under the public water and sewer (PWS) statutes in Title 75, chapter 6, part 
1, MCA.  ARM 17.38.101(4)(d) incorporates by reference sewage system rules that 
are promulgated by the Department of Environmental Quality (department) under the 
Sanitation in Subdivisions Act, Title 76, chapter 4, MCA.  In this joint 
department/board rule notice, the department is proposing amendments to some of 
the Sanitation in Subdivisions Act rules incorporated by reference in ARM 
17.38.101(4)(d).  See department's proposed amendments to ARM 17.36.320 
through 323 and ARM 17.36.325 above.  If, after public comment, the department 
amends those Sanitation in Subdivisions Act rules, the board is proposing to 
incorporate the department's amendments in ARM 17.38.101.  The incorporation of 
the Sanitation in Subdivisions Act rules within the PWS rules is necessary to 
maintain consistency between board PWS requirements for subsurface sewage 
systems and department requirements for subsurface sewage systems in proposed 
subdivisions. 
 The board is proposing to amend ARM 17.38.101(4)(d) to delete the 
incorporation by reference of ARM 17.36.327, which sets out provisions applicable 
to existing sewage systems in proposed subdivisions.  The requirements in ARM 
17.36.327 are less stringent than the requirements in the rues pertaining to public 
sewage systems.  Because of the volume of sewage with which to deal, it is not 
appropriate for ARM 17.36.327 to apply to public sewage systems. 
 The proposed amendments to ARM 17.38.101(4)(d) also add a requirement 
that professional engineers design public subsurface sewage treatment systems 
with design flows greater than, or equal to, 2,500 gallons per day.  This requirement 
is currently codified in Sanitation in Subdivisions Act rules at ARM 17.36.320, but the 
proposed amendments will delete the requirement from ARM 17.36.320 and add it to 
ARM 17.38.101(4)(d).  These amendments are necessary to consolidate, in the 
PWS rules, the requirements for design of public sewage systems by professional 
engineers. 
 
 17.38.106  FEES  (1) remains the same. 
 (2)  Department review will not be initiated until fees calculated under (2)(a) 
through (e) (f) and (5) have been received by the department.  If applicable, the final 
approval will not be issued until the calculated fees under (3) and (4) have been paid 
in full.  The total fee for the review of a set of plans and specifications is the sum of 
the fees for the applicable parts or subparts listed in these citations. subsections: 
 (a)  The fee schedule for designs requiring review for compliance with 
Department Circular DEQ-1 is set forth in Schedule I, as follows: 
 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-23-

 SCHEDULE I 
 Policies 
  ultra violet disinfection ................................................................. $    700 
  point-of-use/point-of-entry treatment ........................................... $    700 
 Section 1.0 Engineering Report ............................................................. $    280 
 Section 3.1 Surface water 
  quality and quantity ..................................................................... $    700 
  structures .................................................................................... $    700 
 Section 3.2 Ground water ...................................................................... $    840 
 Section 4.1 Microscreening .................................................................... $    280 
 Section 4.1 2 Clarification 
  standard clarification ................................................................... $    700 
  solid contact units ........................................................................ $ 1,400 
 Section 4.2 3 Filtration 
  rapid rate ..................................................................................... $ 1,750 
  pressure filtration ......................................................................... $ 1,400 
  diatomaceous earth ..................................................................... $ 1,400 
  slow sand .................................................................................... $ 1,400 
  direct filtration .............................................................................. $ 1,400 
  biologically active filtration ........................................................... $ 1,400 
  membrane filtration ..................................................................... $ 1,400 
  micro and ultra filtration ............................................................... $ 1,400 
  bag and cartridge filtration ........................................................... $    420 
 Section 4.3 4 Disinfection ...................................................................... $    700 
 Section 4.4 5 Softening .......................................................................... $    700 
 Section 4.6 Ion Exchange ...................................................................... $    700 
 Section 4.5 7 Aeration 
  natural draft .................................................................................. $   280 
  forced draft ................................................................................... $   280 
  spray/pressure ............................................................................. $   280 
  packed tower ................................................................................ $   700 
 Section 4.6 8 Iron and manganese ......................................................... $   700 
 Section 4.7 9 Fluoridation ....................................................................... $   700 
 Section 4.8 10 Stabilization ..................................................................... $   420 
 Section 4.9 11 Taste and odor control .................................................... $   560 
 Section 4.10 Microscreening ................................................................... $   280 
 Section 4.11 Ion exchange ..................................................................... $   700 
 Section 4.12 Adsorptive media ............................................................... $   700 
 Chapter 5 Chemical application .............................................................. $   980 
 Chapter 6 Pumping facilities ................................................................... $   980 
 Section 7.1 Plant storage ........................................................................ $   980 
 Section 7.2 Hydropneumatic tanks ......................................................... $   420 
 Section 7.3 Distribution storage .............................................................. $   980 
 Section 7.4 Cisterns ................................................................................ $   420 
 Chapter 8 Distribution system 
  per lot fee ..................................................................................... $     70 
  non-standard specifications ......................................................... $   420 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-24-

  transmission distribution (per lineal foot) ...................................... $  0.25 
  rural distribution system (per lineal foot) ...................................... $  0.03 
  sliplining existing mains (per lineal foot) ....................................... $  0.15 
 Chapter 9 Waste disposal ....................................................................... $   700 
 Appendix A 
  new systems ................................................................................ $   280 
  modifications ................................................................................ $   140 
 (b) through (c) and Schedule III remain the same. 
 (d)  The fee schedule for designs requiring review for compliance with 
Department Circular DEQ-4 is set forth in Schedule IV, as follows: 
 
 SCHEDULE IV 
 Chapter 4 Pressure Dosing .................................................................... $    280 
 Chapter 7 5 Septic Tanks ...................................................................... $    280 
 Chapters 8, 10, 11, 12, 13 6 Soil Absorption Trenches Systems ........... $    280 
 Chapter 9 Dosing System ...................................................................... $    280 
 Chapter 14 Elevated Sand Mounds ....................................................... $    280 
 Chapter 6, Subchapter 6.8 ETA and ET Systems .................................. $    700 
 Chapters 15, 16, 17 Subchapters 7.1, 7.2, and 7.3 Filters ..................... $    280 
 Chapters 17, 18 ETA and ET Systems .................................................. $    700 
 Chapter 20 7, Subchapter 7.4 Aerobic Treatment ................................. $    700 
 Chapter 21 7, Subchapter 7.5 Chemical Nutrient-Reduction Systems .. $    700 
 Chapter 7, Subchapter 7.6 Alternate Advanced Treatment Systems ..... $    700 
 Chapter 24, 25, 26, 27 8 Holding Tanks, Pit Privy, Seepage Pits, Waste 

Segregation, Experimental Systems ...................................................... $    280 
 Appendix D ............................................................................................ $    280 
 Non-degradation Review ....................................................................... $    420 
 
 (e)  The fee schedule for the review of plans and specifications not covered 
by a specific department design standard, but within one of the following categories, 
The fee schedule for designs requiring review for compliance with Department 
Circular DEQ-10 is set forth in Schedule V as follows:  
 
 SCHEDULE V 
 Spring box and collection lateral ............................................................ $    350 
 
 (f)  The fee schedule for designs requiring review for compliance with 
Department Circular DEQ-16 is set forth in Schedule VI, as follows: 
 
 SCHEDULE VI 
 Cisterns .................................................................................................. $    420 
 
 (3) through (7) remain the same. 
 
 AUTH:  75-6-108, MCA 
 IMP:  75-6-108, MCA 
 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-25-

 REASON:  The proposed amendment to ARM 17.38.106(2) clarifies rule 
language.  The proposed amendment is necessary to use correct language in the 
rule description.  The proposed amendment is house-keeping in nature and has no 
direct effect on the regulation.  
 The proposed amendments to ARM 17.38.106(2)(a) modify the review fee 
categories under that schedule.  The proposed amendments are necessary to 
correspond to the proposed 2014 edition of Department Circular DEQ-1(DEQ-1).  
The proposed amendments do not modify any review fee.  They merely correct the 
line item titles to reflect the new chapter numbering and naming.  The cumulative 
amount for impacted persons is zero because there is no proposed increase, 
decrease, or new amount.  No persons are affected fiscally by this rule amendment 
because the fees remain the same for every type of application. 
 The proposed amendments to ARM 17.38.106(2)(d) modify the review fee 
categories under that table.  The proposed amendments are necessary to 
correspond to the 2013 edition of Department Circular DEQ-4(DEQ-4).  The 
Schedule IV table was not updated when DEQ-4 was updated in 2013; therefore, fee 
item headings described in the Schedule IV table are no longer accurate.  The 
proposed amendments do not increase any fee.  They correct the line item titles to 
reflect the new chapter numbering and naming.  The cumulative amount for 
impacted persons is zero because there is no proposed increase, decrease, or new 
amount.  No persons are affected fiscally by this rule amendment because the fees 
remain the same for every type of application. 
 The proposed amendment to ARM 17.38.106(2)(e) would modify  review fee 
Schedule V.  The proposed amendment is necessary to incorporate new 
Department Circular DEQ-10(DEQ-10) into the line item description.  The review fee 
is not changed.  Prior to adoption of DEQ-10, the department charged a review fee 
for review of plans and specifications not covered by a specific design standard, 
which covered spring boxes and collection laterals, of $350.  The review fee for 
spring boxes and collection laterals under new DEQ-10 will remain at $350. 
 The proposed addition of ARM 17.38.106(2)(f) would create a new review fee 
Schedule VI.  The proposed amendment is necessary to incorporate new 
Department Circular DEQ-16(DEQ-16) into the fee schedule.  The review fee is not 
changed.  Prior to adoption of DEQ-16, the department charged a review fee $420 
for the review of cistern plans and specifications under Department Circular DEQ-1.  
The review fee for cisterns under new DEQ-10 will remain at $420. 
 
 4.  Concerned persons may submit their data, views, or arguments, either 
orally or in writing, at the hearing.  Written data, views, or arguments may also be 
submitted to Elois Johnson, Paralegal, Department of Environmental Quality, 1520 
E. Sixth Avenue, P.O. Box 200901, Helena, Montana 59620-0901; faxed to (406) 
444-4386; or e-mailed to ejohnson@mt.gov, no later than 5:00 p.m., __________, 
2014.  To be guaranteed consideration, mailed comments must be postmarked on or 
before that date. 
 
 5.  Katherine Orr, attorney for the board, or another attorney for the Agency 
Legal Services Bureau, has been designated to preside over and conduct the 
hearing. 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-___ 

-26-

 6.  The board and department maintain a list of interested persons who wish 
to receive notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency.  Persons who 
wish to have their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes 
the name, e-mail, and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies 
that the person wishes to receive notices regarding: air quality; hazardous 
waste/waste oil; asbestos control; water/wastewater treatment plant operator 
certification; solid waste; junk vehicles; infectious waste; public water supplies; 
public sewage systems regulation; hard rock (metal) mine reclamation; major facility 
siting; opencut mine reclamation; strip mine reclamation; subdivisions; renewable 
energy grants/loans; wastewater treatment or safe drinking water revolving grants 
and loans; water quality; CECRA; underground/above ground storage tanks; MEPA; 
or general procedural rules other than MEPA.  Notices will be sent by e-mail unless 
a mailing preference is noted in the request.  Such written request may be mailed or 
delivered to Elois Johnson, Paralegal, Department of Environmental Quality, 1520 E. 
Sixth Ave., P.O. Box 200901, Helena, Montana 59620-0901, faxed to the office at 
(406) 444-4386, e-mailed to Elois Johnson at ejohnson@mt.gov; or may be made by 
completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the board or department. 
 
 7.  The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply. 
 
 8.  With regard to the requirements of 2-4-111, MCA, the board and 
department have determined that the amendment of the above-referenced rules will 
significantly and directly impact small businesses. 
 
Reviewed by:    BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
 
 
       BY:          
JOHN F. NORTH    ROBIN SHROPSHIRE 
Rule Reviewer    Chairman 
 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 
      QUALITY 
 
 
     BY:          
      TRACY STONE-MANNING, Director 
 
 Certified to the Secretary of State, ___________________, 2014. 



BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW� 
AGENDA ITEM� 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR RULEMAKING� 

AGENDA # III.C.1.� 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY - The Department requests approval of an amendment to the 
Montana Strip and Underground Mining Reclamation Act. The Department is 
requesting this amendment in order to maintain compliance with federal regulations 
governing insitu coal gasification under the Office of Surface Mining . 

LIST OF AFFECTED RULES - ARM 17.24.905 

AFFECTED PARTIES SUMMARY - Affected and interested parties include , but are not limited 
to , the Department's Industrial and Energy Minerals Bureau , coal mine and prospecting 
companies. 

SCOPE OF PROPOSED PROCEEDING - The Board is considering final action on adoption of 
the amendment to the above-referenced rule. 

BACKGROUND - SB 292, of the 2011 Legislative session required the board to adopt rules 
necessary to regulate underground mining using insitu coal gasification by October 1, 
2011. The bill also states that the rule regulating insitu coal gasification may not be 
more stringent than the comparable federal regulations or guidelines. Prior to the 
passage of 82-4-207, MCA, the board adopted the following two rules specifically 
regulating insitu coal gasification: ARM 17.24.902 provides permit application 
requirements and ARM 17.24.903 provides performance standards for insitu coal 
gasification . Both of these rules include appropriate provisions of subchapters 3 
through 8 and 10 through 13 that are applicable to insitu coal permit applications and 
operations. ARM 17.24.902 and 17.24.903 are substantially similar to the comparable 
federal regulations, which are contained in 30 CFR 785 .22 and 30 CFR Part 828. 
Following passage of 82-4-207 , MCA, the Department reviewed subchapter 3 through 8 
and 10 through 13 to identify which rules within those subchapters apply . The 
Department determined that most rules would apply to those operations. Rather than 
adopting rules that duplicate existing rules, the Department recommended and the 
Board adopted ARM 17.24.905 that lists rules not applicable to Insitu Coal Operations. 

During the Office of Surface Mining review of Subchapter 9, it was determined that ARM 
17.24.905(1 )(b) [ARM 17.24.320, Plans for Disposal of Excess Spoil] be removed . 
Although the reviewer agreed that this rule would probably not be part of an Insitu 
process, Federal Law did not omit disposal of excess spoil and made State regulations 
less stringent that it's Federal counterpart. 

HEARING INFORMATION - The Department recommended that the Board not schedule a 
hearing; therefore, no hearing was conducted . 



BOARD OPTIONS - The Board may: 

1.	 Adopt the proposed amendment as set forth in the attached Notice of 
Proposed Amendment (No Public Hearing Contemplated); 

2.	 Adopt the proposed amendment with revisions that the Board finds are 
appropriate and that are consistent with Notice of Proposed Amendment 
(No Public Hearing Contemplated) and the record in this proceeding; or 

3.	 Decide not to adopt the amendments. 

DEQ RECOMMENDATION - The Department recommends amendment of ARM 17.24 .905 
as set forth in the attached draft Notice of Amendment. 

Enclosures 

1.	 Notice of Proposed Amendment (No Public Hearing Contemplated) 
2.	 Memo from Dana David, Staff Attorney , and HB 311 checklist 
3.	 Draft Notice of Adoption 



-2364

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA
 

In the matter of the amendment of ARM 
17.24.905 pertaining to rules not 
appl icable to in situ coal operations 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED 
AMENDMENT 

(RECLAMATION) 

NO PUBLIC HEARING 
CONTEMPLATED 

TO : All Concerned Persons 

1. On February 3, 2014, the Board of Environmental Review proposes to 
amend the above-stated rule . 

2. The board will make reasonable accommodations for persons w ith 
disabilities who wish to participate in this rulemaking process or need an alternative 
accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation , contact Elois 
Johnson, Paralegal , no later than 5:00 p.m ., January 15, 2014, to advise us of the 
nature of the accommodation that you need . Please contact Elois Johnson at 
Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 200901 , Helena, Montana 59620 
0901 ; phone (406) 444-2630; fax (406) 444-4386; or e-mail ejohnson@mt.gov. 

3. The rule proposed to be amended provides as follows, stricken matter 
interlined , new matter underlined: 

17.24.905 RULES NOT APPLICABLE TO IN SITU COAL OPERATIONS 
(1) The following rules are not applicable to in situ coal gasification : 
(a) remains the same. 
(b) ARM 17.24.320 (Plans for Disposal of Excess Spoil) ; 
(c) and (d) remain the same, but are renumbered (b) and (c) . 
(2) remains the same. 

AUTH : 82-4-207 , MCA 
IMP: 82-4-221,82-4-222, 82-4-223, 82-4-225, 82-4-227 , 82-4-228,82-4-231, 

82-4-232 , 82-4 -233 , 82-4-237, 82-4 -238 , 82-4-240, 82-4-243 , MCA 

REASON : It is necessary to amend this rule because the Office of Surface 
Min ing has determined that, by eliminating the plans for disposal of excess spoil , our 
rule would be less stringent than the federal counterpart . In order for the department 
to continue to requlate coal mining , its rules must be as str ingent as the Surface 
Min ing Control and Reclamation Act and implement federal statute 30 U.S .C. 1253. 

4. Concerned persons may submit their data, views , or arguments 
concerning the proposed action in wr iting to Elois Johnson at Department of 
Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 200901 , Helena , Montana 59620-0901 ; phone 

MAR Notice No. 17-350 24-12/26/1 3 



-2365

(406) 444-2630; fax (406) 444-4386 ; or e-mail ejohnson@mt.gov, no later than 
January 23,2014. To be guaranteed consideration , mailed comments must be 
postmarked on or before that date . 

5. If persons who are directly affected by the proposed action wish to express 
their data , views, or arguments orally or in writing at a public hearing , they must 
make written request for a hearing and submit this request along with any written 
comments they have to Elois Johnson at Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. 
Box 200901 , Helena, Montana 59620-0901; phone (406) 444-2630 ; fax (406) 444
4386 ; or e-mail ejohnson@mt.gov, no later than January 23, 2014 . 

6. If the department receives requests for a public hearing on the proposed 
act ion from either 10 percent or 25, whichever is less, of the persons who are 
directly affected by the proposed action ; from the appropriate administrative rule 
review committee of the Legislature; from a governmental subdivision or agency; or 
from an association having not less than 25 members who will be directly affected , a 
hearing will be held at a later date. Notice of the hearing will be published in the 
Montana Administrative Register. Ten percent of those persons directly affected has 
been determined to be 1 based on the fewer than 20 regulated mines in Montana. 

7. The board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive 
notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have 
their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name , e
mail , and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the 
person wishes to receive notices regarding : air quality ; hazardous waste/waste oil; 
asbestos control ; water/wastewater treatment plant operator certification ; solid 
waste ; junk vehicles ; infectious waste; public water supply ; public sewage systems 
regulation ; hard rock (metal) mine reclamat ion; major facility siting; opencut mine 
reclamation; strip mine reclamation ; subdivisions; renewable energy grants/loans; 
wastewater treatment or safe drinking water revolving grants and loans ; water 
quality ; CECRA; underground/above ground storage tanks ; MEPA; or general 
procedural rules other than MEPA. Notices will be sent bye-mail unless a mailing 
preference is noted in the request. Such written request may be mailed or delivered 
to Elois Johnson , Paralegal, Department of Environmental Qual ity, 1520 E. Sixth 
Ave. , P.O. Box 200901, Helena, Montana 59620-0901 , faxed to the office at (406) 
444-4386, e-mailed to Elois Johnson at ejohnson@mt.gov, or may be made by 
completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the board. 

8. The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply. 

24-12/26/13 MAR Notice No. 17-350 



-2366

9. With regard to the requirements of 2-4-111 , MCA, the department has 
determined that the amendment of the above-referenced rule will not significantly 
and directly impact small businesses. 

Reviewed by : BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

lsi John F. North BY: lsi Robin Shropshire 
JOHN F. NORTH ROBIN SHROPSHIRE 
Rule Reviewer Chairman 

Certified to the Secretary of State , December 16, 2013. 

MAR Notice No. 17-350 24-12/26/13 



Montana Department of 
Steve Bullock, GovernorE NV11RONIMENllIIQUAlLI[iY Trac y Stone-Manning, Director 

P. O. Box 200901 • Helena, MT 59620-0901 • (406) 444-2544 • Website : www.cleq.mt.gov 

MEMO 

To:	 The Board of Environmental Review 

Dana David, DEQ Staff Attome~:::~///From: 

Re:	 In the matter of the amendment of ARM 17.24.905 pertaining to rules not app licable to in 
situ coal operations 

Date:	 February 25 , 20 14 

On behalf of the Montana Department of Env ironmental Quality, Indu strial Energy 
Materials Bureau, Coa l Section, I submit the following in support of the above referenced 
rulemaking. 

The HB52 1 requirement that the rule is no more str ingent than federal regulations does 
not apply to Montana Strip and Underground Mine Reclamation Act. 

The Private Property Ass essment checkli st required by HB 311 is attached to this Memo 
as Attachment A and indicates that the proposed rule result s in no takings or damagin g 
implications. 

Enforcement Divi sion • Permitt ing & Compliance Div ision • Plannin g, Preventi on ...~ Assistance Division • Rem ediation Division 



ATTACHMENT A� 

PRIVATE PROPERTY ASSESSMENT ACT CHECKLIST� 
In Situ Coal Rule� 

DOES THE PROPOSED AGE NCY ACTION HAV E TAKINGS IMPLICATIONS 
UND ER THE PRIVATE PROPERTY ASSESSMENT ACT? 

Yes No 

1. Does the action pertain to land or water management or 
~ environmental regulation affecting private real property or water rights? 

~	 2. Does the action result in either a permanent or indefinite phy sical 
occupation of private property? 

~	 3. Does the action deprive the owner of all economicall y viable uses 
of the property? 

~	 4. Does the action deny a fundamental attribute of ownership ? 

5. Does the action require a property owner to dedicate a portion of ~ 
property or to grant an ea sement? [If the answer is NO , skip questions Sa 
and 5b and continue with question 6.] 

Sa. Is there a reas onable, specific connection between the government 
requirement and legitimate state interests? 

5b. Is the government requirement roughly proportional to the impact 
of the prop osed use of the property? 

~	 6. Does the action have a severe impact on the value of the property? 

7. Does the action dam age the property by cau sing some physical 
~ 

disturbance with respect to the prop erty in exc ess of that sustained by the 
public generally? [If the answer is NO, do not answer que stions 7a through 
7c.] 

7a. Is the impact of govemment action dire ct, peculiar, and significant? 

7b. Has government action resulted in the property becoming -lpractically inaccessibl e, waterlogged, or flooded ? 

7c. Has governm ent action dimini shed property values by more than 
30% and necessitated the physical taking of adj acent property or property 
across a public wa y from the property in question? 



At tachment A 
Page 2 

Taking or damaging implication exist if YES is checked in response to question 1 and also to an y� 
one or more of the following questions: 2,3 ,4, 6, 7a, 7b, 7c; or if NO is checked in resp onse to� 
questions Sa or Sb.� 

If takin g or damaging implic ation exists, the agenc y must comply with §S of the Private Property� 
Assessment Act , to include the preparation of a takin g or damaging impact assessment.� 
Normally, the preparation of an impact assessment will require consultation with agency legal� 
staff.� 



-1

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW� 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA� 

In the matter of the amendment of ARM NOTICE OF AMENDMENT 
17.24.905 pertaining to rules not 
applicable to in situ coal operations (RECLAMATION) 

TO: All Concerned Persons 

1. On December 26, 2013, the Board of Environmental Review published 
MAR Notice No. 17-350 regarding a notice of proposed amendment, no public 
hearing contemplated , of the above-stated rule at page 2364, 2013 Montana 
Administrative Register, issue number 24. 

2. The board has amended ARM 17.24.905 exactly as proposed . 

3. No public comments or testimony were received . 

Reviewed by: BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

By: 
JOHN F. NORTH ROBIN SHROPSHIRE 
Rule Reviewer Chairman 

Certified to the Secretary of State, , 2014. 

Montana Administrative Register 17-350 



BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW� 
AGENDA ITEM� 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR RULEMAKING PROPOSAL� 

AGENDA ITEM # III.C.2 . 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY - The Department requests adoption of a new rule pertaining to 
the administrative requirements for limited opencut operations. The new rule would 
implement the provisions for limited opencut operations in section 5 of Senate Bill 332 
(2013) . 

LIST OF AFFECTED RULES - New Rule I 

AFFECTED PARTIES SUMMARY - Owners or operators of permitted opencut operations 
wanting to conduct limited opencut operations that meet the criteria in Section 5 of 
Senate Bill 332 (13) codified as 82-4-431 (2), Montana Code Annotated (MCA) . 

SCOPE OF PROPOSED PROCEEDING - The Board is considering final action on the adoption 
of New Rule 1 as proposed in the Montana Administrative Register as Notice 17-351, 
with one noncontroversial wording change. 

BACKGROUND - Proposed New Rule 1 provides administrative requirements and 
procedures that are necessary to implement the provisions in Section 5 of Senate Bill 
332 (2013) (now codified as 82-4-431 (2), MCA) for limited opencut operations. An 
operator who holds an opencut permit under 82-4-431 , MCA may conduct a limited 
opencut operation without obtaining an additional permit or an amendment to an 
existing permit if the limited opencut operation meets the criteria in 82-4-431 (2), MCA. 
Section 82-4-431 (2), MCA requires the operator to submit appropriate site and 
operation information on a form provided by the department. Proposed New Rule I will 
clarify the time limits for limited opencut site reclamation, and for submittal of an 
application to continue or expand a limited opencut operation pursuant to Section 5 of 
Senate Bill 332 (the provisions for continuing and expanding limited opencut operations 
are codified as 82-4-431 (4), MCA). Finally, New Rule 1 provides that the 10,000 cubic 
yard limitation for a limited opencut operation does not include the volume of soil and 
overburden that is stripped and stockpiled on the limited opencut operation site for 
reclamation purposes. This clarification is necessary to uphold the intent of Senate Bill 
332, which is to allow operators to get on the ground to complete smaller, short-term 
projects without having to undertake the full opencut permitting process 

HEARING INFORMATION - No hearing was held and no public comments were received . 
The department submitted one noncontroversial revision to the rule text and emailed it 
to the Opencut Stakeholder Group . Receiving no objection , the department proposes to 
strike the words "required by" and replace them with "acceptable to" in paragraph (2)(b) 
of the rule. This change would make uniform the language used in paragraphs (2)(b) 
and (2)(d), and would not alter the meaning of the rule. 



BOARD OPTIONS - The Board may: 

1.� Adopt New Rule I as set forth in the attached Notice of Proposed Adoption ; 
2.� Adopt New Rule I with revisions the Board finds appropriate and consistent 

with the scope of the Notice of Proposed Adoption and the record in this 
proceeding ; or 

3.� Decide not to adopt New Rule I. 

DEQ RECOMMENDATION - The Department recommends adoption of New Rule 1 as set 
forth in the attached Notice of Adoption. 

Enclosures 

1. Notice of Proposed Adoption (No Public Hearing Contemplated) 
2. Memo from Dana David, Staff Attorney and HB 311 checklist 
3. Comment from Edward Coleman 
4. Draft Notice of Adoption 



-2367

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW� 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA� 

In the matter of the adoption of New NOTICE OF PROPOSED 
Rule I pertaining to administrative ADOPTION 
requirements for limited opencut 
operations (RECLAMATION) 

NO PUBLIC HEARING 
CONTEMPLATED 

TO: All Concerned Persons 

1. On February 3, 2014, the Board of Environmental Review proposes to 
adopt the above-stated rule. 

2. The board will make reasonable accommodations for persons with 
disabilities who wish to participate in this rulemaking process or need an alternative 
accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation , contact Elois 
Johnson , Paralegal, no later than 5:00 p.m., January 15, 2014, to advise us of the 
nature of the accommodation that you need. Please contact Elois Johnson at 
Department of Environmental Quality , P.O. Box 200901 , Helena, Montana 59620
0901; phone (406) 444-2630; fax (406) 444-4386; or e-mail ejohnson@mt.gov. 

3. The proposed new rule provides as follows : 

NEW RULE I ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS FOR LIMITED 
OPENCUT OPERATIONS (1) An operator holding an opencut permit may conduct 
a limited opencut operation that meets the criteria in 82-4-431(2) , MCA, without first 
obtaining an additional permit or an amendment to an existing permit when , prior to 
commencing the limited opencut operation , the operator completes and submits to 
the department appropriate site and opencut operation information on a limited 
open cut operation form provided by the department. 

(2) The operator must submit a completed limited opencut operation form 
and the following information to the department prior to commencing the opencut 
operation : 

(a) the operator's complete name and address; 
(b) the location, in the format required by the department, of the limited 

open cut operation site; 
(c) the locational coordinates of the approximate center of the limited opencut 

operation site; 
(d) the location, in a format acceptable to the department, of the operator's 

nearest limited opencut operation to the proposed limited opencut operation site; 
(e) plans to expand or continue the limited opencut operation in accordance 

with 82-4-431 (4), MCA; 
(f) the landowner's name and address ; 
(g) driving directions to access the site from the nearest public road; 

24-12/26/13 MAR Notice No. 17-351 



-2368

(h) a description of the pre-mine condition of the limited opencut operation 
site and the pre-mine condition of any private access roads to the limited opencut 
operation site; 

(i) an aerial or topographic map of the limited opencut operation site ; and 
U) certification by the operator that the information provided to the 

department in the limited opencut operation form is complete and accurate. 
(3) The department's receipt of a limited opencut operation form initiates the 

timeframes set forth in 82-4-431 , MCA, for either : 
(a) salvaging soil , removing materials, and reclaiming the limited opencut 

operation site ; or 
(b) applying for a permit to continue or expand the opencut operation . 
(4) A person conducting a limited opencut operation , authorized under 82-4

431 (2), MCA, may not remove more than 10,000 cubic yards of materials and 
overburden . This limitation does not include the volume of soil and overburden that 
is stripped and stockpiled on the limited opencut operation site for site reclamation . 

AUTH: 82-4-422 , MCA� 
IMP: 82-4-431 , MCA� 

REASON : Proposed New Rule I provides administrative requirements that 
are necessary to implement the provisions in Section 5 of Senate Bill 332 (Chapter 
198, Laws of 2013, codified in 82-4-431 (2), MCA) for limited opencut operations. An 
operator who holds a permit under 82-4-431, MCA, may conduct a limited opencut 
operation without obtaining an additional permit or an amendment to an existing 
permit if the limited opencut operation meets the criteria in 82-4-431(2) , MCA. To 
meet the criteria in 82-4-431(2) , MCA, for a limited opencut operat ion, the operator 
must submit appropriate site and operation information on a form provided by the 
department. Proposed New Rule I is necessary to set forth administrative 
procedures for submitting appropriate limited opencut operation site and operation 
information to the department in accordance with Sect ion 5 of Senate Bill 332. 
Proposed New Rule I will provide necessary clarification of the time limits for site 
reclamation and for submittal of an application to continue or expand a limited 
opencut operation pursuant to 82-4-431(4) , MCA, as adopted in Section 5 of Senate 
Bill 332. Finally , New Rule I provides that the 10,000-cubic-yard limitation for a 
limited opencut operation does not include the volume of soil and overburden that is 
stripped and stockpiled on the limited opencut operation site for reclamation 
purposes . This clarification is necessary to uphold the intent of Senate Bill 332, 
which is to allow operators a way to avoid the full permit process when necessary to 
complete smaller , short-term projects. 

4. Concerned persons may submit their data , views , or arguments 
concerning the proposed action in writing to Elois Johnson at Department of 
Environmental Quality , P.O. Box 200901 , Helena , Montana 59620-0901 ; phone 
(406) 444-2630 ; fax (406) 444-4386; or e-mail ejohnson@mt.gov, no later than 
January 23, 2014. To be guaranteed consideration , mailed comments must be 
postmarked on or before that date. 

MAR Notice No. 17-351 24-12/26/13 



-2369

5. If persons who are directly affected by the proposed action wish to express 
their data , views , or arguments orally or in writ ing at a public hearing , they must 
make written request for a hearing and submit this request along with any written 
comments they have to Elois Johnson at Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. 
Box 200901 , Helena , Montana 59620-0901; phone (406) 444-2630 ; fax (406) 444
4386 ; or e-mail ejohnson@mt.gov, no later than January 23,2014. 

6 . If the department receives requests for a public hearing on the proposed 
act ion from either 10 percent or 25, whichever is less , of the persons who are 
directly affected by the proposed action ; from the appropriate administrative rule 
review committee of the Legislature ; from a governmental subdivision or agency; or 
from an association having not less than 25 members who will be directly affected, a 
hearing will be held at a later date . Notice of the hearing will be published in the 
Montana Administrative Register. Ten percent of those persons directly affected has 
been determined to be 55 based on the 550 operators holding permits in Montana. 

7. The board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive 
notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have 
their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name, e
mail , and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the 
person wishes to receive notices regarding : air quality; hazardous waste/waste oil; 
asbestos control ; water/wastewater treatment plant operator certification ; solid 
waste ; junk vehicles ; infectious waste; publ ic water supply; public sewage systems 
regulation ; hard rock (metal) mine reclamation; major facility siting ; opencut mine 
reclamation ; strip mine reclamation ; subdivisions; renewable energy grants/loans; 
wastewater treatment or safe drinking water revolving grants and loans ; water 
quality; CECRA; underground/above ground storage tanks ; MEPA ; or general 
procedural rules other than MEPA. Notices will be sent bye-mail unless a mailing 
preference is noted in the request. Such written request may be mailed or delivered 
to Elois Johnson, Paralegal , Department of Environmental Quality , 1520 E. Sixth 
Ave., P.O. Box 200901 , Helena, Montana 59620-0901 , faxed to the office at (406) 
444-4386, e-mailed to Elois Johnson at ejohnson@mt.gov, or may be made by 
completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the board. 

8. The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302 , MCA, apply and have 
been fulfilled. The primary bill sponsor was contacted by letter dated July 29, 2013. 

24-12/26/13 MAR Notice No. 17-351 



-2370

9. With regard to the requirements of 2-4-111 , MCA, the department has 
determined that the adoption of the above-referenced rule will not significantly and 
directly impact small businesses. 

Rev iewed by: BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

/s/ John F. North BY: /s/ Robin Shropshire 
JOHN F. NORTH ROBIN SHROPSHIRE 
Ru Ie Reviewer Chairman 

Certified to the Secretary of State, December 16, 2013. 

MAR Notice No. 17-351 24-12/26/13 



Montana Department of 
Steve Bullock, Gove rno r ]ENYJ[]R(ONlVl[lEN1LIIQUAUrV Tracy Stone-M a nning, Director 

P. 0 , Box 200901 • Hele na , MT 59620-09 0] • (406) 444-2544 • Website : www.deq.mt.g o v 

MEMO 

To:� The Board of Environme ntal Review 

From:� Dana David, DEQ Staff A ttorne y~ 
Re:� In the matter of the adoption of New Rule I perta ining to administrative requirements for 

limited opencut operations 

Date:� February 25, 20 14 

On behalf of the Montana Departm ent of Enviro nmental Quality, Industrial Energy 
Materials Bureau, Opencut Mining Section, I submi t the following in support of the above 
referenced rulemaking. 

The HB521 requirement that the rule is no more stringent than federal regulations does 
not app ly to The Opencut Mining Act. 

The Private Property Assessment check list required by HB 311 is attached to this M emo 
as Attachment A and indicates that the proposed rule results in no takings or damaging 
implicat ions. 

Enfo rcemen t Division • Permitting & Compliance Division • Planning. Preventio n & Assista nce Division • Remediation Division 



ATTACHMENT A� 

PRIVATE PROPERTY ASSESSMENT ACT CHECKLIST� 
Limited Opencut Rule� 

DOES THE PROPOSED AGEN CY ACT ION HA VE TAKINGS IMPLIC ATIONS 
UND ER THE PRIVATE PROPERTY ASSESSMENT ACT? 

Yes r No I 

l. Does the action pertain to land or water management or -J 
environmental regul ation affecting private real property or water rights? 

~	 2. Doe s the action result in eith er a permanent or indefinite physical 
occupation of private property? 

~	 3. Doe s the action deprive the owner of all economically viab le uses 
of the property? 

~	 4. Does the acti on deny a fundamental attribute of ownership? 

5. Does the acti on require a property owner to dedicate a portion of~ 
property or to grant an easement? [If the answer is NO, skip questi ons 5a 
and 5b and continue with questi on 6.J 

Sa. Is the re a reasonabl e, specific connection between the gov ernment 
requirement and legitimate state interests ? 

5b . Is the government requirement rou ghl y proportional to the impact 
of the proposed use 0 f the property? 

~	 6. Does the action have a severe impact on the value of the property? I� I 
7. Does the action damage the property by causing some physical 

~ di sturbance with respect to the property in excess of that sustained by the 
public generally? [If the answer is NO , do not answer questions 7a through 
7c .J 

7a . Is the impact of gove rnme nt action direct , peculiar , and significant? 

7b . Has government action resulted in the property becoming 
I practically inaccessible, waterlogged , or flooded ? 

7c. Has gov ernment action dimini shed property values by more than 
30% and necessitated the physical taking of adj acent property or property 
across a public way from the property in que stion ? 



Taking or damaging implication exis t if YE S is checked in response to question 1 and also t o any 
one or more of the following questions: 2, 3, 4, 6, 7a, 7b, 7c; or if NO is checked in response to 
questions Sa or 5b. 

I f takin g or damaging implication ex ists , the agency must comp ly with §5 of the Private Prop erty 
Assessment Act, to include the preparation of a taking or damaging impact assessment. 
Normally , the preparation of an imp act assessment will requi re consultation with agency legal 
staff. 



Montana Department of 
Steve Bullock, GovernorENVX]R{))NMENllAJLQUAUTY Tracy Stone-Manning, Director 

P. O . Box 200901 • Helena, MT 59620-0901 • (406) 444-2544 • Website: www.deq.rnt.gov 

January 21, 2014 VIA EMAIL (ejohnson@mt.gov) 

Elois Johnson 
Department of Environmental Quality 
Legal Unit 
P.O. Box 200901 
Helena, Montana 59620-0901 

RE: IEMB Comments to Montana Administrative Register Notice 17-351j Notice of 
Proposed Adoption: In the matter of the adoption of New Rule I pertaining to 
administrative requirements for limited opencut operations 

Elois: 

In my capacity as Bureau Chief of the Industrial and Energy Minerals Bureau, I am submitting 
this comment to the above-referenced rule making for the purpose of notifying interested persons 
that the Opencut Program intends to make a noncontroversial amendment to the text of the rule. 

The Opencut Program intends to strike the words "required by" and replace them with 
"acceptable to" in paragraph (2)(b ) of the proposed rule. Doing so will eliminate the discrepancy 
in language between paragraphs (2)(b) and (2)(d ) and any confusion that could arise from the use 
of di fferent terms. . 

The program will email a copy of this comment to our Opencut Stakeholders Group. 

Thank you for including this comment in the record. 

Copies: Open cut Stakeholders Group via Email 

Enforcement Division • r ermitrin g & Compliance Division • Plann ing, Prevention & As~i.s tao ce Division • Remediation Division 



-1

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW� 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA� 

In the matter of the adoption of New NOTICE OF ADOPTION 
Rule I pertaining to administrative 
requirements for limited opencut (RECLAMATION) 
operations 

TO : All Concerned Persons 

1. On December 26 , 2013 , the Board of Environmental Review published 
MAR Notice No . 17-351 regarding a not ice of proposed adoption , no public hearing 
contemplated , of the above-stated rule at page 2367 , 2013 Montana Administrative 
Register , issue number 24. 

2. The board has adopted New Rule I (17.24 .226) as proposed, but with the 
following changes, stricken matter interlined, new matter underlined: 

17.24.226 ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS FOR LIMITED OPENCUT 
OPERATIONS (1) remains as proposed . 

(2) The operator must submit a completed limited opencut operation form 
and the following information to the department prior to commencing the opencut 
operation : 

(a) remains as proposed. 
(b) the location , in tHe ~ format fequired by acceptable to the department, of 

the limited opencut operation site ; 
(c) through (4) remain as proposed . 

3. The following comments were received and appear with the board's 
responses : 

COMMENT NO .1: The proposed rule in (2)(b) prov ides that the operator 
shall describe "the location, in the format required by the department, of the limited 
opencut operation site," while (2)(d) requires the operator to provide "the location, in 
a format acceptable to the department, of the operator's nearest limited open cut 
operation to the proposed limited opencut operation site." The use of the words 
"required by" in (2)(b) and "acceptable to" in (2)(d) may be confusing . 

RESPONSE: The Opencut Program intends to strike the words "required by" 
and replace them with "acceptable to" in (2)(b) of the proposed rule . Doing so will 
eliminate the discrepancy in language between (2)(b) and (2)(d) and any confusion 
that could arise from the use of different terms. The change does not alter the 
meaning of the rule. 

Montana Administrative Register 17-351 



-2

4. No other comments or testimony were received . 

Reviewed by: BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

By: 
JOHN F. NORTH ROBIN SHROPSHIRE 
Rule Reviewer Chairman 

Certified to the Secretary of State, , 2014 . 

Montana Administrative Register 17-351 



BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
 
AGENDA ITEM
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR RULE ADOPTION
 

Agenda Item # III.C.3 . 

Agenda Item Summary - The Department requests that the Board adopt the 
amendment to ARM 17.30.630 extending the expiration date of the temporary standards 
for Daisy Creek , the Stillwater River, and Fisher Creek. 

List of Affected Board Rules - ARM 17.30.630 

Affected Parties Summary - The U.S. Forest Service is cleaning up contamination 
resulting from historic mining activities in the vicinity of Daisy Creek, the Stillwater River, 
and Fisher Creek . The Forest Service is the primary party affected by the temporary 
standards. 

Scope of Proposed Proceeding - The Board is considering final action on adoption of 
the amendment to ARM 17.30.630. 

Background - The U.S. Forest Service has conducted remediation in the vicinity of 
Daisy Creek, the Stillwater River, and Fisher Creek over the past 15 years to clean up 
contamination from historic mining. The Board set temporary standards for the streams 
in 1999 to allow the Forest Service to conduct remediation without incurring penalties 
for the existing contamination in the streams. The temporary standards expire June 4, 
2014 . 

An evaluation of data collected from 2003 to 2012 shows that water quality has 
improved significantly, but that several contaminants in the stream are still well above 
DEQ-7 water quality criteria . Under 75-5-312, MCA, temporary standards are allowed 
for a maximum of 20 years . If the temporary standards expire in 2014, the much more 
stringent DEQ-7 water quality criteria will apply , and several water quality criteria will be 
exceeded. 

The Department recommends extending the expiration date to June 4, 2019, completing 
the 20 year maximum allowance for temporary standards. This will give the Forest 
Service additional time to allow natural processes to occur as the final step in the water 
quality remediation effort. 

Hearing Information - Kathrine Orr conducted a public hearing on February 20,2014 
on the proposed amendments to ARM 17.30.630 . The Presiding Officer's Report and 
the draft Notice of Amendment and Adoption, with public comments and proposed 
responses, are attached to this executive summary. Only one comment was received . 
It favored extension of the expiration date as proposed. 



Board Options - The Board may: 

1.	 Adopt the proposed amendment as set forth in the attached Notice of Public 
Hearing on Proposed Amendment and Adoption ; 

2.	 Adopt the proposed amendment to ARM 17.30.630 with revisions that the Board 
finds are appropriate and that are consistent with the scope of the Notice of 
Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment and Adoption and the record in this 
proceeding; or 

3.	 Decide not to adopt the amendment to ARM 17.30.630. 

DEQ Recommendation - The Department recommends the Board adopt the 
amendment to ARM 17.30.630. 

Enclosures 

1.	 Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment and Adoption 
2.	 Hearing Examiner's Report (to be provided) 
3.	 HB 521 and HB 311 Analyses 
4.	 Public Comment 
5.	 Draft Notice of Amendment 



-183

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA
 

In the matter of the amendment of ARM ) NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
17.30.630 pertaining to temporary water) PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
quality standards ) 

) (WATER QUALITY) 

TO: All Concerned Persons 

1. On February 20,2014, at 1:30 p.m., the Board of Environmental Review 
will hold a public hearing in Room 40, Metcalf Building, 1520 East Sixth Avenue , 
Helena , Montana, to consider the proposed amendment of the above-stated rule . 

2. The board will make reasonable accommodations for persons with 
disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an alternative 
accessible format of this notice. If you require an accommodation, contact Elois 
Johnson , Paralegal , no later than 5:00 p.m., February 14, 2014, to advise us of the 
nature of the accommodation that you need . Please contact Elois Johnson at 
Department of Environmental Quality, P.O . Box 200901 , Helena, Montana 59620
0901; phone (406) 444-2630; fax (406) 444-4386; or e-mail ejohnson@mt.gov. 

3. The rule proposed to be amended provides as follows , stricken matter 
interlined , new matter underlined: 

17.30 .630 TEMPORARY WATER QUALITY STANDARDS (1) Following 
are the temporary water quality standards and related provisions for New World 
Mining District: 

(a) and (b) remain the same. 
(c) Temporary water quality standards for Daisy Creek, from its headwaters 

to its confluence with the Stillwater River in the Yellowstone River Drainage, are as 
follows . No increase from existing conditions (no decrease for pH) is allowed at any 
point in Daisy Creek for any of the following parameters. These standards are in 
effect until June 4, ~ 2019. Metals standards are in terms of micrograms per liter 
(lJg/liter) total recoverable concentrations and pH standards are in standard units 
(su) . 

Parameter In Daisy Creek at its confluence with the Stillwater River, 
the following standards shall not be exceeded more than 
3% of the time . 
IJg/liter 

Aluminum 9,510. 
Cadmium 4. 
Copper 3,530. 
Iron 6,830 . 
Manganese 1,710. 
Zinc 540 . 

MAR Notice No. 17-352 2-1/30/14 



-184

pH	 must be maintained above 4.6 suo 

(d) Temporary water quality standards for a headwater portion of the 
Stillwater River, a tributary of the Yellowstone River , from Daisy Creek to the 
Absaroka-Beartooth wilderness boundary, are as follows. No increase from existing 
conditions (no decrease for pH) is allowed at any point in this reach of the Stillwater 
River for any of the following parameters. These standards are in effect until June 4, 
2-G-14 2019. Metals standards are in terms of micrograms per liter (I-lg/Iiter) total 
recoverable concentrations and pH standards are in standard units (su). 

Parameter In the Stillwater River at the Absaroka-Beartooth 
wilderness boundary, the following standards shall not be 
exceeded more than 3% of the time . 
lJg/liter 

Aluminum 670. 
Copper 200. 
Iron 1,320. 
Lead 13. 
Manganese 86. 
Zinc 49. 
pH must be maintained above 5.5 suo 

(e) Temporary water quality standards for Fisher Creek, from its headwaters 
to its confluence with Lady of the Lake Creek, the headwaters of the Clark's Fork of 
the Yellowstone River , are as follows . No increase from existing conditions (no 
decrease for pH) is allowed at any point in Fisher Creek for any of the following 
parameters. These standards are in effect until June 4, 2-G-14 2019. Metals 
standards are in terms of micrograms per liter (I-lg/Iiter) total recoverable 
concentrations and pH standards are in standard units (su). 

Parameter	 In Fisher Creek at its confluence with the Lady of the 
Lake Creek, the following standards shall not be 
exceeded more than 3% of the time. 
IJg/liter 

Aluminum 470.
 
Copper 110.
 
Iron 750.
 
Lead 2.
 
Manganese 82.
 
Zinc 44.
 
pH must be maintained above 5.7 suo
 

AUTH: 75-5-201,75-5-312, MCA
 
IMP: 75-5-312 , MCA
 

REASON : The U.S. Forest Service has conducted remediation in the vicinity 
of Daisy Creek, the Stillwater River , and Fisher Creek over the past 15 years to 

2-1/30/14	 MAR Notice No. 17-352 



-185

mitigate contam ination from historic mining. The board set temporary standards for 
these streams effective June 4, 1999, to allow the Forest Service to conduct 
remediation for the existing contamination in the streams. The temporary standards 
expire June 4, 2014 . 

An evaluation of data collected from 2003 to 2012 shows that water quality 
has improved significantly, but that several contaminants in the streams are still well 
above Department Circular DEQ-7 water quality criteria . If the temporary standards 
expi re in 2014, the much more stringent DEQ-7 water quality criteria will apply and 
several water quality criteria will be exceeded . 

According to 75-5-312, MCA, temporary standards are allowed for a 
maximum of 20 years. The board proposes to extend the expiration date to June 4, 
2019 , completing the 20-year maximum allowance for temporary standards. This 
will provide additional time to allow natural processes to occur and water quality to 
improve. 

4. Concerned persons may submit their data, views, or arguments, either 
orally or in writing, at the hearing . Written data , views, or arguments may also be 
submitted to Elois Johnson, Paralegal , Department of Environmental Quality, 1520 
E. Sixth Avenue, P.O. Box 200901, Helena , Montana 59620-0901; faxed to (406) 
444-4386 ; or e-mailed to ejohnson@mt.gov, no later than 5:00 p.m., February 27, 
2014 . To be guaranteed consideration, mailed comments must be postmarked on or 
before that date . 

5. Katherine Orr, attorney for the board , or another attorney for the Agency 
Legal Services Bureau, has been designated to preside over and conduct the 
hearing. 

6. The board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive 
notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have 
their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name , e
mail , and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the 
person wishes to receive notices regarding: air quality; hazardous waste/waste oil; 
asbestos control ; water/wastewater treatment plant operator certification ; solid 
waste; junk vehicles ; infectious waste; public water supply; public sewage systems 
regulation; hard rock (metal) mine reclamation; major facility siting ; opencut mine 
reclamation ; strip mine reclamation; subdivisions; renewable energy grants/loans; 
wastewater treatment or safe drinking water revolving grants and loans; water 
quality; CECRA; underground/above ground storage tanks; MEPA; or general 
procedural rules other than MEPA. Notices will be sent bye-mail unless a mailing 
preference is noted in the request. Such written request may be mailed or delivered 
to Elois Johnson, Paralegal , Department of Environmental Quality, 1520 E. Sixth 
Ave., P.O. Box 200901 , Helena , Montana 59620-0901, faxed to the office at (406) 
444-4386, e-mailed to Elois Johnson at ejohnson@mt.gov, or may be made by 
completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the board . 

7. The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302 , MCA, do not apply. 

MAR Notice No. 17-352 2-1/30/14 



-186

8. With regard to the requirements of 2-4-111 , MCA, the department has 
determined that the amendment of the above-referenced rule will not significantly 
and directly impact small businesses. 

Reviewed by: BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

lsi John F. North BY: lsi Robin Shropshire 
JOHN F. NORTH ROBIN SHROPSHIRE 
Rule Reviewer Chairman 

Certified to the Secretary of State, January 21,2014. 

2-1/30/14 MAR Notice No. 17-352 



.-...--'
f 

..-
Montana Department of 

~ ENVIRONMENTAL QUAUTY MEMo� 

TO: Board of Enviro nme ntal Review 

FROM: John F. North, Chief Legal Counsel 
Department of Env i ro nment~ua l i ty 

DATE: February 20, 20 14 ~ 
SUBJECT: HB 52 1 Stringency and SB 311Takings Analyses for MAR Notice No. 17-352 

HB 521, which is cod ified at 75-5-203, MCA, requires that the Department make ce rta in 
findings before it may adopt water qualit y rules that are more stringent than comparable federal 
regulations that addre ss the same circumstances. Section 75-5-308, MC, contaqins similar 
reguirement. 

In MAR Notice No. 17-352, the Board is proposing to extend the temporary wate r quality 
standards for the drainages in the New World Mining Distric t. The B-1 standards contained in 
ARM 17.30 .623 which wou ld apply to these drainages but for the temporary standards. The B-1 
standards are federally approved permanent standards for these drainages. The temporary 
standards are less stringent than the B-1 standards. Therefore, extension of the temporary 
standards is not more stringent than comparable federal rules . 

SB 3 11 is codified as Title 2, Chapter 10, MCA. That chapter requir es an agency to 
conduct a takings impact assessment for actions, including adoption of rules, with takin g or 
dama gin g impli cations . It directs that the Attorney General privid e a checklist for agencies to 
use in determining whether actions have taking or damaging implications. Attached is a 
checklist for these rule amendments. It indicates that adoption of these rule amendments does 
not have taking or damaging implications. 

Attachment 





- ---

PRIVATE PROPERTY ASSESSMENT ACT CHECKLIST: MAR Notice No. 17-352� 

DOES THE PROPOSED AGENCY ACTION HAVE TAKINGS IMPLICATIONS� 
UNDER THE PRIVATE PROPERTY ASSESSMENT ACT? 

Yes No 

1. Does the action pertain to land or 
water management or environmental regulation 
affecting private real property or water 
rights? 

2. Does the action result in either a 
permanent or indef ini te phys ical occupation 
of private property? 

3. Does the action deprive the owner of 
all economically viable uses of the 
property? 

4. Does the action deny a fundamental 
attribute of ownership? 

5. Does the action require a property 
owner to dedicate a portion of property or 
to grant an easement? [If the answer is NO, 
skip questions 5a and 5b and continue with 
question 6.] 

Sa. Is there a reasonable, spec if ic 
connection between the government 
requirement and legitimate state interests? 

5b. Is the government requirement roughly 
proportional to the impact of the proposed 
use of the property? 

.> 6. Does the action have a severe impact on 
the value of the property? 

/7. Does the action damage the property by 
causing some physical disturbance with 
respect to the property in excess of that 
sustained by the public generally? [If the 
answer is NO, do not answer questions 7a 



through 7c.] 

7a . Is the impact of government action 
direct, peculiar, and significant? 

7b. Has government action resul ted in the 
property becoming practically inaccessible, 
waterlogged, or flooded? 

7c. Has government action diminished 
property values by more than 30% and 
necessitated the physical taking of adjacent 
property or property across a public way 
from the property in question? 

Taking or damaging implication exist if YES is checked in 
response to question 1 and also to anyone or more of the 
following questions: 2, 3, 4, 6, 7a, 7b, 7c; or if NO is checked 
in response to questions 5a or 5b . 

February 20, 2014 



USDA United States Forest Custer National Forest and Gallatin National Forest 
~ Department of Service Supervisor's Office Supervisor's Office 

Agricultu re 1310 Main Street 10 East Babcock 
Billings, MT 59105 P.O. Box 130 

Bozeman, MT 59771 

File Code: 2160 
Date: February 25, 2014 

Elois Johnson� 
Montana Department of Envirorunental Quality� 
PO Box 200901� 
Helena, MT 59620-090� 

Dear Ms. Johnson: 

The following statement is provided to you for the Board of Environmental Review. 

Ms . Chairman, members of the Board, and members of the public in attendance at this public 
hearing, as you are aware the USDA Forest Service presented a summary of the New World 
Mining District Response and Restoration Project to the Board on January 21, 2014. The 
summary discussed reclamation work completed in the District including elimination of acidic 
and metal rich mine discharges, installation of impermeable caps over mine wastes, placement of 
mine wastes into an engineered waste repository, revegetation of disturbances, and other means 
to reduce acid and metals loading to District streams. A goal of this work was to improve 
surface water quality in the Daisy Creek/Stillwater River and Fisher Creek drainages. 

Under ARM 17.30 .630, Temporary Standards implemented in the Daisy Creek/Stillwater River 
and Fisher Creek drainages allowed reclamation work to occur while remaining compliant with 
state of Montana water quality regulations. Water quality improvements have been recorded 
however available data indicate that these streams had metals concentrations and pH values that 
did not meet B1 numeric water quality standards listed in Circular DEQ-7 prior to mining in the 
District. Monitoring data collected after completion of all major reclamation activities in 2008 
also suggest that B1 standards will not be met due to natural mineralization in the District which 
acts as a source of metal loading. 

For these reasons, the USDA Forest Service recommends that the Temporary Standards be 
extended for a final five-year period. This would allow the Project to remain compliant with 
water quality regulations while the USDA Forest Service and the Montana Department of 
Envirorunental Quality work together to develop a final administrative closure that would be 
both protective of District water quality and compliant with state and federal regulations after the 
Temporary Standards expire in June 2019. 

USDA:,.- ·7 ~ 
America's Working Forest-Caring Every Day in Every Way Printed on Recycled Paper ...... 



If you have any questions or require additional information, please call me at (406) 587- 6709. 

Sincerely, 

MARY BETH MARKS 

MARY BETH MARKS 
On-Scene Coordinator 

cc: Bob Kirkpatrick 
Ronald E Hecker 
Robert Grosvenor 



-1

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW� 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA� 

In the matter of the amendment of ARM 
17.30.630 pertaining to temporary wate
quality standards 

) 
r) 
) 

NOTICE OF AMENDMENT 

(WATER QUALITY) 

TO: All Concerned Persons 

1. On January 30, 2014, the Board of Environmental Review published MAR 
Notice No. 17-352 regarding a notice of public hearing on the proposed amendment 
of the above-stated rule at page 183, 2014 Montana Administrative Register , Issue 
Number 2. 

2. The board has amended the rule exactly as proposed . 

3. The following comment was received and appears with the board's 
response : 

COMMENT NO.1 : One comment was received in support of the proposed 
amendment. 

RESPONSE: The board acknowledges the comment. 

4. No other comments or testimony were received . 

Reviewed by: BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

By: 
JOHN F. NORTH ROBIN SHROPSHIRE 
Rule Reviewer Chairman 

Certified to the Secretary of State , , 2014. 

Montana Administrative Register 17-352 







































BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the amendment 
of ARM 17.30.630 pertaining to 
temporary water quality standards 

Presiding Officer Report 

1. On February 20, 2014, the undersigned presided over and conducted the 

public hearing held in Room 40 of the Metcalf Building, 1520 East Sixth Avenue, 

Helena, Montana, to take public comment on the above-captioned proposed amendment. 

The amendment pertains to the continuation until June 4, 2019 of the application of 

temporary water quality standards for Daisy Creek Fisher Creek and a portion of the 

Stillwater River from Daisy Creek to the Absaroka-Beartooth wilderness boundary in 

order to allow the United States Forest Service to conduct remediation of the existing 

contamination in the streams. 

The Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment and Adoption was 

contained in the 2014 Montana Administrative Register (MAR) No.2, MAR Notice No. 

17-352, published on January 30, 2014. A copy of the notice is attached to this report. 

(Attachments are provided in the same order as they are referenced in this report.) 

2. The hearing began at 1:30 p.m. The hearing was recorded by tape recorder 

and the recording is held by Mr. Dave Feldman referenced below. 

3. The undersigned announced that persons at the hearing would be given an 

opportunity to submit their data, views, or arguments concerning the proposed action, 

either orally or in writing. At the hearing, the undersigned also identified and 

summarized the MAR notice and read the Notice of Function of Administrative Rule 

Review Committee as required by Mont. Code Ann. § 2-4-302(7)(a). 

1 



~~~~~~~~~~~~----------------------------------------------~~~~--~-----

SUMMARY OF HEARING 

4. Mr. Dave Feldman in the Planning Prevention and Assistance Division of 

the Department of Environmental Quality (Department) gave a brief statement that the 

Department was recommending that the amendment be adopted as proposed in the MAR 

notice. 

5. No one appeared at the hearing to testify. 

SUMMARY OF WRITTEN MATERIALS 

6. After the hearing, written comments were received from the United States 

Department of Agriculture, specifically Ms. Mary Beth Marks, the On-Scene 

Coordinator. The Department of Agriculture recommends that the temporary water 

quality standards be extended for the final five-year period because this would enable the 

New World Mining District Response and Restoration Project to remain compliant with 

water quality regulations while the Department of Agriculture and the Montana 

Department of Environmental Quality work to develop a tina! administrative closure 

under applicable state and federal regulations. 

The Department also submitted a memorandum from the Department Chief Legal 

Counsel, John North, with HB 521 and HB 311 reviews of the proposed amendment and 

a Private Property Assessment Act Checklist. Mr. North's memorandum is attached to 

this report. 

7. HB 521 does not apply to the proposed amendment because the proposed 

amendment is not more stringent than any comparable federal regulations. Therefore, no 

further HB 521 analysis is required. 

8. With respect to HB 311 (the Private Property Assessment Act, Mont. Code 

Ann. § § 2-10-101 through 1 05), the State is required to assess the taking or damaging 

implications of a proposed rule affecting the use of private real property. This 

rulemaking affects the use of private real property. A Private Property Assessment Act 

2 



Checklist was prepared, which shows that the proposed amendments and new rules do 

not have taking or damaging implications. Therefore, no further assessment is required. 

9. The period to submit comments ended at 5 p.m. on February 27,2014. 

PRESIDING OFFICER COMMENTS 

10. The Board has jurisdiction to adopt the amendment referenced in this 

rulemaking pursuant to Mont. Code Ann§§ 75-5-201 and 75-5-312. 

11. House Bill521 (1995), codified in the Water Quality Act at Mont. Code 

Ann. § 75-5-203, generally provides that the Board may not adopt a rule that is more 

stringent than comparable federal regulations or guidelines, unless the Board makes 

written findings after public hearing and comment. The proposed amendment is not more 

stringent than a comparable federal regulation or guideline. Therefore written findings 

are not necessary. 

12. House Bill 311 ( 1995), the Private Property Assessment Act, codified as 

Mont. Code Ann. § 2-10-101 through -105, provides that a state agency must complete a 

review and impact assessment prior to taking an action with taking or damaging 

implications. The proposed amendment affects real property. A Private Property 

Assessment Act Checklist was prepared in this matter. The proposed amendment does 

not have taking or damaging implications. Therefore, no further HB 311 assessment is 

necessary. 

13. The procedures required by the Montana Administrative Procedure Act, 

including public notice, hearing, and comment, have been followed. 

14. The Board may adopt the proposed rule amendment, or reject it, or adopt 

the amendment with revisions not exceeding the scope of the public notice. 

15. Under Mont. Code Ann. § 2-4-305(7), for the rulemaking process to be 

valid, the Board must publish a notice of adoption within six months of the date the 

Board published the notice of proposed rulemaking in the Montana Administrative 

Register, or by July 30, 2014. 

3 



-~·-r--· 

Dated this _,_--:--_,:_D_ day of March 2014. 

KA THERINE.tf. ORR 
Presiding Officer 

4 


	Agenda
	I.A.I
	DRAFT 012114 Minutes

	III.A.1
	ExecSummary

	III.B.1
	ExecSummary

	III.C.1
	ExecSummary

	III.C.2
	ExecSummary

	III.C.3
	ExecSummary

	III.D.1
	Stipulation for Dismissal with Prejudice BER2013-01-AQ
	Order Dismissing Case  BER2013-01-AQ

	III.D.2
	Stipulation for Dismissal with Prejudice  BER2013-02-AQ
	Order Dismissing Case  BER2013-02-AQ

	III.D.3
	Presiding Officer Report




